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APCB INC. 

2023 Annual Shareholders’ Meeting Procedure 

I. Calling Meeting to Order 

II. Chairperson’s Address 

III. Report Items 

IV. Proposals 

V. Election Matters 

VI. Discussion 

VII. Extraordinary Motions 

VIII. Adjournment 
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APCB INC. 

2023 Annual Shareholders’ Meeting Agenda 

I. Time: 9:00 a.m. on Wednesday, June 14, 2023 

II. Venue: No. 240, Sec. 3, Daguan Rd., Banqiao Dist., New Taipei City (Qukunlun 

Park Activity Center) 

III. Type of Meeting: Physical Meeting 

IV. Reporting Total Number of Shares Represented and Calling Meeting to Order by 

Chairperson 

V. Chairperson’s Address 

VI. Report Items 

(I) 2022 Business Report 

(II) 2022 Audit Committee Report 

(III) Report on Endorsements/Guarantees Status in 2022 

(IV) Report on Loaning of Funds in 2022 

(V) Report on Investment status in Mainland China in 2022 

(VI) Report on Distribution of Remuneration to Employees, Directors and 

Supervisors of 2022 

(VII) Amendments to the “Regulations Governing Procedure for the Board of 

directors Meeting.” 

VII. Proposals 

(I) The Company’s 2022 financial statements and business report are proposed 

for acceptance. 

(II) The Company’s 2022 earnings allocation is proposed for acceptance. 

VIII. Election Matters 

(I) Increase election and Replenish election of directors (including independent 

directors). 

IX. Discussion 

(I) The motion to release newly elected directors and their representatives from 

the prohibition of competition is proposed for resolution. 

X. Extraordinary motions. 

XI. Adjournment 

-2-



Report Items 

I. 2022 Business Report 

Explanation: Please refer to page 4-5 of this meeting handbook. 

II. 2022 Audit Report of Audit Committee 

Explanation: Please refer to the “Audit committee report” on page 6 of this 

meeting handbook. 

III. Report on Endorsements/Guarantees Status in 2022 

Explanation: Please refer to page 7 of this meeting handbook. 

IV. Report on Loaning of Funds in 2022 

Explanation: Please refer to page 8 of this meeting handbook. 

V. Report on Investment status in Mainland China in 2022 

Explanation: Please refer to page 9 of this meeting handbook. 

VI. Report on Distribution of Remuneration to Employees, Directors and Supervisors 

of 2022 

Explanation: I. The distribution is pursuant to the provisions of Article 19 of 

the Company’s Articles of Incorporation. 

II. For 2022, the Company appropriated NT$3,323,332 for 

remuneration to employees and NT$1,400,000 for remuneration 

to directors, all of which are paid in cash. There was no 

difference between the payment amount and the estimated 

amount in the year in which the expenses were recognized. 

III. The proposal has been reviewed by the remuneration committee 

and approved by the board of directors; thereafter, it is reported 

to the shareholders’ meeting pursuant to laws. 

VII. Amendments to the “Regulations Governing Procedure for the Board of directors 

Meeting.” 

Description: In response to the amendments to the laws and regulations. Please 

refer to page 10-11 of this agenda handbook for the Comparison Table of the 

Amended Articles.
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2022 Business Report 

In early 2022, the Covid-19 pandemic has been under control. However, 
Russia started the war in Ukraine, which triggered the global energy and raw 
material shortage. Moreover, the quantitative easing policy adopted by central 
banks in Europe and U.S. for the economics in the pandemic has caused global 
inflation. To erase the inflation, the U.S. government raised the interest rate by 
4.25% this year, which makes 2022 a year full of financial and economic turmoil. 

The operating revenue of the Company in 2022 was NT$1,434,909, a 
decrease of 39.51% compared to 2021, and the gross operating loss was 
NT$107,828 thousand, a decrease of 143.53%. The reason of the decrease was 
that the demand for NB CAM module board and SMD LED packaging board for 
desktops and laptops dramatically decreased due to the ease of the pandemic. 
The gross operating loss was incurred by the dramatical decrease of operating 
revenue. 

The Company’s 2022 consolidated operating revenue was NT$6,954,943 
thousand, a decrease of 23.61% compared to 2021, and the consolidated 
operating gross profit was NT$510,435 thousand, a decrease of 59.64% 
compared to 2021. Apart from the decrease of operating revenues for the 
Company, the operating revenue for subsidiary APCB Electronics (Kun Shan) 
and APCB Electronics (Thailand) also decreased compared to the previous year. 
APCB Electronics (Kun Shan) stopped operation for 1 month due to the local 
pandemic regulations, and the demand for memory module boards in Q4 
decreased dramatically. These factors led to the decrease of 21.61% in 
operating revenue compared to the previous year. For APCB Electronics  
(Thailand), the operating revenue decreased by 5.46% compared to the 
previous year due to the decreased demand in power supply boards. As the 
consolidated revenue decreased dramatically, the consolidated operating gross 
profit decreased dramatically as well. 

In 2023, the impact of pandemic almost disappears as the lockdown in 
China was lifted. However, the inflation which led to the huge increase in interest 
rates in the U.S. that caused global financial and economic turmoil is still going 
on. The inflation does not ease down as expected, and the economics of 
consumer electronic products is still not recovering. The upstream industry 
expects that the economic will bounce back in the second half of the year. We 
expect to resume normal operation by then. 

-4-



(I) Business Plan Implementation Results 

Unit: NTD thousand 

Year 
Items 

2022 2021 Variance Ratio 

Operating revenue 6,954,943 9,104,032 -23.61% 

Operating costs 6,444,508 7,839,298 -17.79% 

Operating Income 510,435 1,264,734 -59.64% 

Operating expenses 653,137 788,363 -17.15% 

Operating net income -142,702 476,371 -129.96% 

Non-operating revenue and 
expenses 

176,482 -153,377 -215.06% 

Net income (losses) before tax 33,780 322,994 -89.54% 

Net income (losses) of the period 34,874 240,415 -85.49% 

(II) Analysis of financial balance and profitability 

 Year 
Items 

2022 2021 

Financial 
Structure 

Debt to asset ratio 58.70% 61.69% 

Long-term funds to property, plant and 
equipment ratio

183.15% 171.54% 

Profitability 

Return on assets 1.29% 2.97% 

Return on Equity 0.97% 6.84% 

Profit before tax to paid-in capital ratio 2.11% 20.20% 

Profit margin 0.50% 2.64% 

Earnings per share $0.22 $1.50 

Chairman: 
Tsao, Yueh-Hsia 

Manager:  
Lai, Chin-Tsai 

Accounting Supervisor: 
Tsai, Cheng-Hung 
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APCB INC. 

Audit Committee Report 

The board of directors has prepared the Company’s 2022 Business 

Report, Financial Statements, and earnings allocation proposal. The CPA 

firm of KPMG was retained to audit the company’s financial statements 

and has issued an audit report. The foregoing business report, financial 

statements, and earnings allocation proposal have been reviewed and 

determined to be correct and accurate by the audit committee members. 

According to applicable requirements of the Securities and Exchange Act 

and the Company Act, we hereby submit this report 

To  

2023 Annual Shareholders’ Meeting of APCB INC. 

APCB INC. 

Convener of Audit Committee: Chang, Hui  

March 24, 2023 

-6-



R
ep

or
t o

n 
En

do
rs

em
en

ts
/G

ua
ra

nt
ee

s S
ta

tu
s i

n 
20

22
 

U
n
it

: 
N

T
D

 t
h
o

u
sa

n
d

 

E
n
d
o

rs
e
m

e
n
t/

 

g
u
ar

a
n
te

e 

p
ro

v
id

er
 

G
u
ar

an
te

ed
 p

ar
ty

 
L

im
it

s 
o

n
 

en
d

o
rs

e
m

e
n
t/

 

g
u
ar

a
n
te

e 

a
m

o
u

n
t 

p
ro

v
id

ed
 t

o
 

ea
ch

 

g
u
ar

a
n
te

ed
 

p
ar

ty
 

M
ax

im
u

m
 

B
al

an
ce

 o
f 

en
d

o
rs

e
m

e
n
t/

 

g
u
ar

a
n
te

e 
fo

r 

th
e 

P
er

io
d
 

En
di

ng
 

Ba
la

nc
e 

of
 

en
do

rs
em

en
t/

gu
ar

an
te

e 

A
m

o
u
n
t 

ac
tu

al
ly

 

d
ra

w
n
 f

o
r 

th
e 

p
er

io
d
 

A
m

o
u
n
t 

o
f 

en
d

o
rs

e
m

e
n
t/

 

g
u
ar

a
n
te

e 

co
ll

at
er

al
iz

ed
 

b
y
 p

ro
p
er

ti
es

R
at

io
 o

f 

ac
cu

m
u
la

te
d
 

en
d

o
rs

e
m

e
n
t/

 

g
u
ar

a
n
te

e 
to

 

n
et

 w
o
rt

h
 

st
at

ed
 i

n
 l

at
e
st

 

fi
n
an

ci
a
l 

st
at

e
m

en
ts

 

M
ax

im
u

m
 

en
d

o
rs

e
m

e
n
t/

 

g
u
ar

a
n
te

e 

a
m

o
u

n
t 

al
lo

w
ab

le
 

C
o

m
p

an
y
 

N
a
m

e
 

C
o

m
p

an
y
 N

a
m

e
 

R
el

at
io

n
 

T
h

e 

C
o

m
p

an
y

 

A
P

C
B

 E
le

ct
ro

n
ic

s 
(K

u
n

sh
an

) 

C
o
.,
 L

td
. 

In
v
es

te
e 

co
m

p
an

y
 

ac
co

u
n
te

d
 b

y
 t

h
e 

eq
u
it

y
 m

et
h
o
d

2
,8

9
3

,3
1

0
1

,1
6

6
,9

8
0

93
6,

65
5

2
3

0
,3

2
5

- 
2

5
.9

0
%

 
3

,6
1

6
,6

3
8

T
h

e 

C
o

m
p

an
y

 

A
P

C
B

 E
le

ct
ro

n
ic

s 
(T

h
ai

la
n
d
) 

C
o
.,
 L

td
. 

In
v
es

te
e 

co
m

p
an

y
 

ac
co

u
n
te

d
 b

y
 t

h
e 

eq
u
it

y
 m

et
h
o
d

2
,8

9
3

,3
1

0
1

,1
8

2
,7

6
5

1,
18

2,
76

5
4

9
9

,6
5

2
- 

3
2

.7
0

%
 

3
,6

1
6

,6
3

8

N
o
te

: 
A

cc
o
rd

in
g
 t

o
 t

h
e 

C
o
m

p
an

y
’s

 “
P

ro
ce

d
u
re

s 
o
f 

E
n
d
o
rs

em
en

ts
/G

u
ar

an
te

es
,”

 t
h

e 
to

ta
l 

am
o
u
n
t 

o
f 

th
e 

C
o
m

p
an

y
’s

 e
x
te

rn
al

 e
n
d
o
rs

em
en

ts
/g

u
ar

an
te

es
 s

h
al

l 
n

o
t 

ex
ce

ed
 1

0
0
%

 o
f 

th
e 

C
o
m

p
an

y
’s

 n
et

 w
o
rt

h
 s

ta
te

d
 i

n
 t

h
e 

la
te

st
 f

in
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

, 
an

d
 t

h
e 

am
o
u
n
t 

o
f 

en
d
o
rs

em
en

ts
/g

u
ar

an
te

es
 t

o
 e

ac
h
 c

o
m

p
an

y
 s

h
al

l 

n
o
t 

ex
ce

ed
 8

0
%

 o
f 

th
e 

C
o
m

p
an

y
’s

 n
et

 w
o
rt

h
 s

ta
te

d
 i

n
 t

h
e 

la
te

st
 f

in
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

. 
F

o
r 

th
o
se

 e
n
g
ag

ed
 i

n
 e

n
d
o
rs

em
en

ts
/g

u
ar

an
te

es
 d

u
e 

to
 d

ea
li

n
g
s,

 t
h
e 

am
o
u
n
t 

sh
al

l 
n
o
t 

ex
ce

ed
 t

h
e 

to
ta

l 
am

o
u
n
t 

o
f 

tr
an

sa
ct

io
n
s 

w
it

h
 t

h
e 

co
m

p
an

y
 i

n
 t

h
e 

la
te

st
 y

ea
r 

(t
h
e 

h
ig

h
er

 a
m

o
u
n
t 

o
f 

p
u
rc

h
as

es
 o

r 
sa

le
s 

b
et

w
ee

n
 t

h
e 

tw
o
 

p
ar

ti
es

).
 

-7-



R
ep

or
t o

n 
L

oa
ni

ng
 o

f F
un

ds
 in

 2
02

2:
 

U
n
it

: 
U

S
D

 t
h
o
u
sa

n
d

/C
N

Y
 t

h
o

u
sa

n
d

F
in

an
ci

n
g
 

co
m

p
an

y
 

C
o

u
n
te

rp
ar

ty
 

M
ax

im
u

m
 

b
al

an
ce

 f
o

r 
th

e 
p

er
io

d

E
nd

in
g 

ba
la

nc
e 

A
m

o
u

n
t 

ac
tu

al
ly

 d
ra

w
n

 
fo

r 
th

e 
p

er
io

d
 

In
te

re
st

 
ra

te
 

ra
n

g
e 

(%
) 

N
at

u
re

 f
o

r 
fi

n
an

ci
n

g
 

A
m

o
u

n
t 

o
f 

b
u

si
n
es

s 
d

ea
li

n
g
s 

R
ea

so
n

 f
o

r 
sh

o
rt

-t
er

m
 

fi
n

an
ci

n
g
 

A
ll

o
w

an
ce

 
fo

r 
b

ad
 d

eb
t 

C
o

ll
at

er
al

 
F

in
an

ci
n

g
 

li
m

it
s 

fo
r 

ea
ch

 
b

o
rr

o
w

in
g
 

co
m

p
an

y
 

F
in

an
ci

n
g
 

co
m

p
an

y
’s

 t
o

ta
l 

fi
n

an
ci

n
g
 

am
o

u
n

t 
li

m
it

s 

It
em

 
V

al
u

e 

A
P

C
B

 H
o

ld
in

g
s 

L
IM

IT
E

D
 

A
P

C
B

 E
le

ct
ro

n
ic

s 
(T

h
ai

la
n

d
)

C
o

.,
 L

td
. 

U
S

D
9

,5
9

0
 

U
SD

9,
59

0 
U

S
D

9
,5

9
0
 

0
 

S
h

o
rt

-t
er

m
 

fi
n

an
ci

n
g
 

- 
T

h
e 

n
ee

d
 f

o
r 

w
o

rk
in

g
 

ca
p

it
al

 

- 
- 

U
S

D
9

,5
9

1
 

U
S

D
9

,5
9

1
 

U
-P

E
A

K
 L

td
. 

A
P

C
B

 E
le

ct
ro

n
ic

s 
(T

h
ai

la
n

d
)

C
o

.,
 L

td
. 

U
S

D
1

6
,9

0
0
 

U
SD

4,
90

0 
U

S
D

4
,9

0
0
 

0
 

S
h

o
rt

-t
er

m
 

fi
n

an
ci

n
g
 

- 
T

h
e 

n
ee

d
 f

o
r 

w
o

rk
in

g
 

ca
p

it
al

 

- 
- 

U
S

D
5

6
,3

0
4
 

U
S

D
5

6
,3

0
4
 

U
-P

E
A

K
 L

td
. 

A
P

C
B

 I
n

te
rn

at
io

n
al

 
C

o
.,

 L
td

.
U

S
D

2
4

,2
0
0
 

U
SD

24
,2

00
 

U
S

D
2

4
,2

0
0
 

0
 

S
h

o
rt

-t
er

m
 

fi
n

an
ci

n
g
 

- 
T

h
e 

n
ee

d
 f

o
r 

w
o

rk
in

g
 

ca
p

it
al

 

- 
- 

U
S

D
5

6
,3

0
4
 

U
S

D
5

6
,3

0
4
 

G
R

E
E

N
 E

L
IT

E
 

L
IM

IT
E

D
 

A
P

C
B

 I
n

te
rn

at
io

n
al

 
C

o
.,

 L
td

.
U

S
D

1
,0

0
0
 

U
SD

1,
00

0 
U

S
D

1
,0

0
0
 

0
 

S
h

o
rt

-t
er

m
 

fi
n

an
ci

n
g
 

- 
T

h
e 

n
ee

d
 f

o
r 

w
o

rk
in

g
 

ca
p

it
al

 

- 
- 

U
S

D
1

,2
6

1
 

U
S

D
1

,2
6

1
 

M
A

X
F

IR
S

T
 

L
IM

IT
E

D
 

A
P

C
B

 E
le

ct
ro

n
ic

s 
(T

h
ai

la
n

d
)

C
o

.,
 L

td
. 

U
S

D
2

,0
0

0
 

- 
- 

0
 

S
h

o
rt

-t
er

m
 

fi
n

an
ci

n
g
 

- 
T

h
e 

n
ee

d
 f

o
r 

w
o

rk
in

g
 

ca
p

it
al

 

- 
- 

-
- 

M
A

X
F

IR
S

T
 

L
IM

IT
E

D
 

A
P

C
B

 I
n

te
rn

at
io

n
al

 
C

o
.,

 L
td

.
U

S
D

3
,0

0
0
 

- 
- 

0
 

S
h

o
rt

-t
er

m
 

fi
n

an
ci

n
g
 

- 
T

h
e 

n
ee

d
 f

o
r 

w
o

rk
in

g
 

ca
p

it
al

 

- 
- 

-
- 

M
A

X
F

IR
S

T
 

L
IM

IT
E

D
 

P
R

O
S

P
E

R
 P

L
U

S
 

L
IM

IT
E

D
 

U
S

D
2

,0
0

0
 

- 
- 

0
 

S
h

o
rt

-t
er

m
 

fi
n

an
ci

n
g
 

- 
T

h
e 

n
ee

d
 f

o
r 

w
o

rk
in

g
 

ca
p

it
al

 

- 
- 

-
- 

P
R

O
S

P
E

R
 

P
L

U
S

 
L

IM
IT

E
D

 

A
P

C
B

 E
le

ct
ro

n
ic

s 
(T

h
ai

la
n

d
)

C
o

.,
 L

td
. 

U
S

D
3

,0
0

0
 

U
SD

3,
00

0 
U

S
D

3
,0

0
0
 

0
 

S
h

o
rt

-t
er

m
 

fi
n

an
ci

n
g
 

- 
T

h
e 

n
ee

d
 f

o
r 

w
o

rk
in

g
 

ca
p

it
al

 

- 
- 

U
S

D
5

,3
3

5
 

U
S

D
5

,3
3

5
 

P
R

O
S

P
E

R
 

P
L

U
S

 
L

IM
IT

E
D

 

A
P

C
B

 I
n

te
rn

at
io

n
al

 
C

o
.,

 L
td

.
U

S
D

2
,0

0
0
 

U
SD

2,
00

0 
U

S
D

2
,0

0
0
 

0
 

S
h

o
rt

-t
er

m
 

fi
n

an
ci

n
g
 

- 
T

h
e 

n
ee

d
 f

o
r 

w
o

rk
in

g
 

ca
p

it
al

 

- 
- 

U
S

D
5

,3
3

5
 

U
S

D
5

,3
3

5
 

N
o

te
: 

A
cc

o
rd

in
g
 t

o
 t

h
e 

C
o

m
p

an
y
’s

 “
P

ro
ce

d
u

re
 o

f 
L

o
an

in
g
 o

f 
F

u
n
d
s 

to
 O

th
er

s,
” 

th
e 

to
ta

l 
am

o
u

n
t 

o
f 

fu
n

d
s 

lo
an

ed
 t

o
 o

th
er

s 
is

 l
im

it
ed

 t
o

 4
0

%
 o

f 
th

e 
n

et
 w

o
rt

h
 s

ta
te

d
 i

n
 t

h
e 

la
te

st
 f

in
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

. 
T

h
e 

to
ta

l 
am

o
u

n
t 

o
f 

fu
n

d
s 

lo
an

ed
 t

o
 o

th
er

s 
fo

r 
th

e 
n

ee
d

 o
f 

sh
o

rt
-t

er
m

 i
n

te
r-

co
m

p
an

y
 o

r 
in

te
r-

en
te

rp
ri

se
 f

in
an

ci
n

g
 s

h
al

l 
n

o
t 

ex
ce

ed
 4

0
%

 o
f 

th
e 

C
o
m

p
an

y
’s

 n
et

 w
o

rt
h

 s
ta

te
d
 i

n
 i

ts
 l

at
es

t 
fi

n
an

ci
al

 
st

at
em

en
ts

, 
an

d
 t

h
e 

am
o

u
n

t 
o

f 
lo

an
s 

to
 e

ac
h
 c

o
m

p
an

y
/e

n
te

rp
ri

se
 s

h
al

l 
n
o

t 
ex

ce
ed

 3
0

%
 o

f 
th

e 
C

o
m

p
an

y
’s

 n
et

 w
o

rt
h

 s
ta

te
d
 i

n
 i

ts
 l

at
es

t 
fi

n
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

. 
F

o
r 

th
o

se
 c

o
m

p
an

ie
s/

en
te

rp
ri

se
s 

w
it

h
 w

h
ic

h
 t

h
e 

C
o

m
p

an
y
 h

as
 b

u
si

n
es

s 
d

ea
li

n
g
s,

 t
h

e 
m

ax
im

u
m

 a
m

o
u

n
t 

sh
al

l 
n

o
t 

ex
ce

ed
 4

0
%

 o
f 

th
e 

C
o

m
p

an
y
’s

 n
et

 w
o

rt
h

 s
ta

te
d

 i
n

 t
h

e 
la

te
st

 f
in

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
; 

th
e 

am
o

u
n

t 
o

f 
ea

ch
 l

o
an

 
sh

al
l 

b
e 

li
m

it
ed

 t
o
 t

h
e 

am
o

u
n

t 
o

f 
b

u
si

n
es

s 
d

ea
li

n
g
s 

b
et

w
ee

n
 t

h
e 

tw
o

 p
ar

ti
es

. 
T

h
e 

am
o

u
n

t 
o

f 
b

u
si

n
es

s 
d

ea
li

n
g
s 

re
fe

rs
 t

o
 t

h
e 

h
ig

h
er

 o
f 

th
e 

p
u

rc
h

as
e 

o
r 

sa
le

 a
m

o
u

n
t 

b
et

w
ee

n
 t

w
o

 p
ar

ti
es

. 
A

cc
o

rd
in

g
 t

o
 t

h
e 

“R
eg

u
la

ti
o

n
s 

G
o

v
er

n
in

g
 I

n
v
es

te
e 

C
o

m
p

an
ie

s’
 L

o
an

in
g
 o

f 
F

u
n

d
s 

to
 O

th
er

s”
 f

o
rm

u
la

te
d

 b
y
 t

h
e 

C
o

m
p

an
y,

 t
h

e 
lo

an
 o

f 
fu

n
d

s 
b

et
w

ee
n

 f
o

re
ig

n
 c

o
m

p
an

ie
s 

in
 w

h
ic

h
 t

h
e 

co
m

p
an

y
 

d
ir

ec
tl

y
 o

r 
in

d
ir

ec
tl

y
 o

w
n

s 
1

0
0

%
 o

f 
th

e 
v
o

ti
n

g
 s

h
ar

es
 i

s 
n

o
t 

su
b

je
ct

 t
o

 t
h

e 
li

m
it

 o
f 

4
0

%
 o

f 
th

e 
n

et
 w

o
rt

h
 o

f 
th

e 
C

o
m

p
an

y
 a

n
d

 t
h

e 
te

rm
 o

f 
o

n
e 

y
ea

r.
 H

o
w

ev
er

, 
th

e 
to

ta
l 

am
o

u
n

t 
o

f 
th

e 
lo

an
 s

h
al

l 
n

o
t 

ex
ce

ed
 1

0
0

%
 o

f 
th

e 
n

et
 w

o
rt

h
 o

f 
th

e 
co

m
p

an
y
 o

f 
th

e 
lo

an
; 

ea
ch

 l
im

it
 s

h
al

l 
n

o
t 

ex
ce

ed
 1

0
0

%
 o

f 
th

e 
n

et
 w

o
rt

h
 o

f 
th

e 
co

m
p

an
y

 o
f 

th
e 

lo
an

. 
B

es
id

es
 t

h
is

, 
th

e 
te

rm
 s

h
al

l 
n

o
t 

ex
ce

ed
 f

iv
e 

y
ea

rs
. 

-8-



R
ep

or
t o

n 
In

ve
st

m
en

t s
ta

tu
s i

n 
M

ai
nl

an
d 

C
hi

na
 in

 2
02

2:
 

U
n
it

: 
$
th

o
u
sa

n
d
 
 

In
v
es

te
e 

C
o

m
p

an
y
 i

n
 

M
ai

n
la

n
d

 C
h

in
a

M
ai

n
 

B
u

si
n
es

se
s 

P
ai

d
-i

n
 

ca
p
it

al
 

M
et

h
o

d
 o

f 
in

v
es

tm
en

t
A

cc
u

m
u

la
te

d
 

o
u
tf

lo
w

 o
f 

in
v
es

tm
en

t 
fr

o
m

 T
ai

w
an

 
as

 o
f 

th
e 

b
eg

in
n
in

g
 o

f 
th

e 
p

er
io

d
 

In
v

es
tm

en
t 

in
fl

o
w

 
an

d
 o

u
tf

lo
w

 o
f 

th
e 

p
er

io
d
 

A
cc

u
m

u
la

te
d

 
O

u
tf

lo
w

 o
f 

In
v

es
tm

en
t 

fr
o

m
 T

ai
w

an
 

o
f 

th
e 

p
er

io
d

P
er

ce
n
ta

g
e 

o
f 

d
ir

ec
t 

o
r 

in
d

ir
ec

t 
sh

ar
eh

o
ld

in
g
 

o
f 

th
e 

C
o

m
p

an
y

 

S
h
ar

e 
o

f 
p

ro
fi

ts
/l

o
ss

es
 

o
f 

th
e 

p
er

io
d

(n
o

te
) 

C
ar

ry
in

g
 

A
m

o
u
n
t 

as
 o

f 
th

e 
en

d
 o

f 
th

e 
p

er
io

d
 

(n
o

te
) 

A
cc

u
m

u
la

te
d

 
in

w
ar

d
 

re
m

it
ta

n
ce

 o
f 

ea
rn

in
g
s 

as
 o

f 
th

e 
en

d
 o

f 
th

e 
p

er
io

d
 

O
u
tf

lo
w

In
fl

o
w

 

A
P

C
B

 E
le

ct
ro

n
ic

s 
(K

u
n

sh
an

) 
C

o
.,
 

L
td

. 

D
es

ig
n

, 
d

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t,
 

p
ro

d
u

ct
io

n
 a

n
d

 
o

p
er

at
io

n
 o

f 
m

u
lt

il
ay

er
 

ci
rc

u
it

 b
o

ar
d
s 

an
d

 n
ew

 
el

ec
tr

o
n
ic

 
co

m
p

o
n
en

ts
 

U
S

$
2

5
,5

0
0

In
v
es

tm
en

t 
in

 
M

ai
n

la
n
d

 C
h

in
a 

co
m

p
an

ie
s 

th
ro

u
g
h

 a
n

 
ex

is
ti

n
g
 

co
m

p
an

y
 

es
ta

b
li

sh
ed

 i
n

 a
 

th
ir

d
 r

eg
io

n
 

U
S

$
2

6
,6

7
5
 

- 
- 

U
S

$
2

6
,6

7
5

 
1

0
0

%
 

U
S

$
4

,6
3

3
 

U
S

$
5

2
,4

0
3

 
U

S
$

1
3

6
,2

8
2
 

H
A

O
 D

U
O

 
E

le
ct

ro
n
ic

s 
C

o
.,
 

L
td

. 

S
al

es
 a

n
d

 
p

u
rc

h
as

e 
o

f 
ci

rc
u
it

 b
o

ar
d

s

U
S

$
2

1
0

 
In

v
es

tm
en

t 
in

 
M

ai
n

la
n
d

 C
h

in
a 

co
m

p
an

ie
s 

th
ro

u
g
h

 a
n

 
ex

is
ti

n
g
 

co
m

p
an

y
 

es
ta

b
li

sh
ed

 i
n

 a
 

th
ir

d
 r

eg
io

n
 

U
S

$
2

1
0

 
- 

- 
U

S
$

2
1

0
 

1
0

0
%

 
U

S
$

-1
6

3
 

U
S

$
1

,6
8

1
 

- 

A
cc

u
m

u
la

te
d
 o

u
tf

lo
w

 o
f 

in
v
es

tm
en

t 
fr

o
m

 
T

ai
w

an
 a

s 
o

f 
th

e 
en

d
 o

f 
th

e 
p

er
io

d
 

In
v
es

tm
en

t 
am

o
u
n
ts

 a
u
th

o
ri

ze
d
 b

y
 

in
v
es

tm
en

t 
co

m
m

is
si

o
n
, 
M

O
E

A
 

U
p

p
er

 l
im

it
 o

n
 i

n
v
es

tm
en

t 
in

 M
ai

n
la

n
d

 
C

h
in

a 
st

ip
u
la

te
d

 b
y
 i

n
v
es

tm
en

t 
co

m
m

is
si

o
n
, 

M
O

E
A

 

U
S

$
2

6
,8

8
5

 t
h

o
u

sa
n

d
 

U
S

$
2

6
,8

8
5

 t
h

o
u

sa
n
d

 
N

T
$

2
,1

6
9

,9
8

3
 t

h
o

u
sa

n
d

 

N
o
te

: 
T

h
e 

in
v
es

tm
en

t 
p
ro

fi
t/

lo
ss

 a
n
d
 c

ar
ry

in
g
 a

m
o
u
n
ts

 d
is

cl
o
se

d
 b

y
 t

h
e 

C
o
m

p
an

y
 r

ep
re

se
n
t 

th
e 

am
o
u
n
ts

 o
f 

ea
ch

 d
ir

ec
t 

o
r 

in
d
ir

ec
t 

in
v
es

tm
en

t.
 T

h
e 

in
v
es

tm
en

t 
p

ro
fi

t 
re

co
g
n

iz
ed

 b
y
 t

h
e 

C
o
m

p
an

y
 i

s 
b

as
ed

 o
n

 t
h

e 
in

v
es

te
e 

co
m

p
an

y
’s

 f
in

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 a

u
d

it
ed

 b
y
 t

h
e 

p
ar

en
t 

co
m

p
an

y
’s

 c
er

ti
fi

ed
 p

u
b
li

c 
ac

co
u
n
ta

n
ts

 i
n
 

T
ai

w
an

 a
n

d
 i

s 
ac

co
u

n
te

d
 b

y
 t

h
e 

eq
u

it
y
 m

et
h

o
d

. 

-9-



Comparison Table of the Amended Articles of “Regulations Governing Procedure for 

the Board of directors Meeting”

Article Before Amendment After Amendment 
Article 3 The board of directors shall meet at 

least quarterly.
A notice of the reasons for 
convening a board meeting shall be 
given to each director and 
supervisor before 7 days before the 
meeting is convened. In emergency 
circumstances, however, a board 
meeting may be called on shorter 
notice.
The notice to be given under the 
preceding paragraph may be 
effected by means of electronic 
transmission with the prior consent 
of the recipients.
All matters set forth under Article 
12, paragraph 1 of these Rules shall 
be specified in the notice of the 
reasons for convening a board 
meeting. In emergency 
circumstances or just cause,None of 
those matters may be raised by an 
extraordinary motion except in the 
case of an emergency or for other 
legitimate reason. 

The board of directors shall meet at 
least quarterly.
A notice of the reasons for 
convening a board meeting shall be 
given to each director and 
supervisor before 7 days before the 
meeting is convened. In emergency 
circumstances, however, a board 
meeting may be called on shorter 
notice.
The notice to be given under the 
preceding paragraph may be 
effected by means of electronic 
transmission with the prior consent 
of the recipients. 
All matters set forth under Article 
12, paragraph 1 of these Rules shall 
be specified in the notice of the 
reasons for convening a board 
meeting.None of those matters may 
be raised by an extraordinary 
motion except in the case of an 
emergency or for other legitimate 
reason.

Article 12 The matters listed below shall be 
raised for discussion at a board 
meeting of the Company:
I. (slightly) 
II.(slightly) 
III.(slightly) 
IV.(slightly) 
V.(slightly) 
VI.The appointment or discharge of 
a financial, accounting, or internal 
audit officer.
VII.A donation to a related party or 
a major donation to a non-related 
party, provided that a public-interest 
donation of disaster relief that is 
made for a major natural disaster 
may be submitted to the following 
board of directors meeting for 
retroactive recognition.
VIII.Any matter that, under Article 
14-3 of the Securities and Exchange 
Act or any other law, regulation, or 
the articles of incorporation, must 
be approved by resolution at a 
shareholders’ meeting or board 
meeting, or any material matter as 
may be prescribed by the competent 
authority. 

The matters listed below shall be 
raised for discussion at a board 
meeting of the Company:
I. (slightly) 
II.(slightly) 
III.(slightly) 
IV.(slightly)
V.(slightly) 
VI.The Chairman of elected or 
Dismissal.
VII.The appointment or discharge of 
a financial, accounting, or internal 
audit officer.
VIII.A donation to a related party or 
a major donation to a non-related 
party, provided that a public-interest 
donation of disaster relief that is 
made for a major natural disaster 
may be submitted to the following 
board of directors meeting for 
retroactive recognition.
IX.Any matter that, under Article 
14-3 of the Securities and Exchange 
Act or any other law, regulation, or 
the articles of incorporation, must 
be approved by resolution at a 
shareholders’ meeting or board 
meeting, or any material matter as 
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Article Before Amendment After Amendment 
The term “related party” in 
subparagraph 7 of the preceding 
paragraph means a related party as 
defined in the Regulations 
Governing the Preparation of 
Financial Reports by Securities 
Issuers. The term “major donation 
to a non-related party” means an 
individual donation, or cumulative 
donations within a 1-year period to 
a single recipient, at an amount of 
NTD100 million or more, or at an 
amount equal to or greater than 1 
percent of net operating revenue or 
5 percent of paid-in capital as stated 
in the CPA-attested financial report 
for the most recent year.
The term “within a 1-year period” in 
the preceding paragraph means a 
period of 1 year calculated 
retroactively from the date on which 
the current board of directors 
meeting is convened. Amounts 
already submitted to and passed by 
a resolution of the board are 
exempted from inclusion in the 
calculation.
At least one independent director of 
the Company shall attend the 
meeting in person. With respect to 
the matters which must be approved 
by resolutions at a board meeting as 
provided in the first paragraph, all 
independent directors shall attend 
the meeting. Where an independent 
director is unable to attend the 
meeting, that independent director 
shall appoint another independent 
director to attend the meeting as 
proxy. If an independent director 
objects to or expresses reservations 
about such a matter, it shall be 
recorded in the board meeting 
minutes; if an independent director 
intends to express an objection or 
reservation but is unable to attend 
the meeting in person, then unless 
there is a legitimate reason to do 
otherwise, that director shall issue a 
written opinion in advance, which 
shall be recorded in the board 
meeting minutes.

may be prescribed by the competent 
authority.
The term “related party” in 
subparagraph 8 of the preceding 
paragraph means a related party as 
defined in the Regulations 
Governing the Preparation of 
Financial Reports by Securities 
Issuers. The term “major donation 
to a non-related party” means an 
individual donation, or cumulative 
donations within a 1-year period to 
a single recipient, at an amount of 
NTD100 million or more, or at an 
amount equal to or greater than 1 
percent of net operating revenue or 
5 percent of paid-in capital as stated 
in the CPA-attested financial report 
for the most recent year.
The term “within a 1-year period” in 
the preceding paragraph means a 
period of 1 year calculated 
retroactively from the date on which 
the current board of directors 
meeting is convened. Amounts 
already submitted to and passed by 
a resolution of the board are 
exempted from inclusion in the 
calculation.
At least one independent director of 
the Company shall attend the 
meeting in person. With respect to 
the matters which must be approved 
by resolutions at a board meeting as 
provided in the first paragraph, all 
independent directors shall attend 
the meeting. Where an independent 
director is unable to attend the 
meeting, that independent director 
shall appoint another independent 
director to attend the meeting as 
proxy. If an independent director 
objects to or expresses reservations 
about such a matter, it shall be 
recorded in the board meeting 
minutes; if an independent director 
intends to express an objection or 
reservation but is unable to attend 
the meeting in person, then unless 
there is a legitimate reason to do 
otherwise, that director shall issue a 
written opinion in advance, which 
shall be recorded in the board 
meeting minutes. 
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Proposals 

Motion I. (Proposed by the Board of Directors) 
Cause: The Company’s 2022 financial statements and business report are proposed for 

acceptance. 

Explanation: I. CPA Chang, Chun-I and CPA Kuan, Chun-Hsiu of KPMG CPA firm 

was retained to audit the company’s financial statements and has 

issued an audit report. Additionally, the board of directors has 

approved the Company’s 2022 Business Report. 

II. For the preceding business reports, independent auditors’ reports 

and financial statements, please refer to page 4-5 and page 17-34 of 

this meeting handbook. 

III. Please accept the statements and report. 

Resolution: 

Motion II. (Proposed by the Board of Directors) 
Cause: The Company’s 2022 earnings allocation is proposed for acceptance. 

Explanation: I. The Company prepared the 2022 earnings distribution table in 

accordance with Article 20 of the Articles of Incorporation. Please 

refer to the appendix table. 

II. The Cash dividends are proposed to be distributed at $0.5 per share 

(rounded to the nearest dollar). The fractional balance of all 

dividends less than NT$1 will be summed up and recognized as 

other revenue of the Company. The board of directors is authorized 

to set the record date and the payment date after the approval at this 

regular shareholders’ meeting. 

III. IV.Please accept the earnings allocation. 

Resolution: 
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APCB INC. 

Earnings Allocation Table 

2022 

Unit: NT$ 

Items Amount 
Beginning balance 772,532,822 

Add: re-measurements of the net defined benefit plan 5,043,130 

Add: net income after tax of the period 34,873,513 

Less: legal reserve appropriation (10%) (3,991,664)

Add: special reserve appropriation 171,755,988 

Retained earnings available for distribution 980,213,789 

Appropriation: 

Less: cash dividends to shareholders ($0.5 per share) (79,949,656)

Undistributed earnings at the end of the period 900,264,133 

Note: The capital stock for the calculation of shareholders’ cash dividends is the 

paid-in capital of $1,598,993,110 in March 2023. 

Chairman: 
Tsao, Yueh-Hsia 

Manager:  
Lai, Chin-Tsai 

Accounting Supervisor: 
Tsai, Cheng-Hung 
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Election Matters

Motion I. (Proposed by the Board of Directors) 

Cause: Increase election and Replenish election of directors (including independent 

directors). 

Explanation: I. The current independent director Sun, Yuan-Jun resigned. The 

Company reported to this year’s shareholders’ meeting for replenish 

election in accordance with the laws and regulations. To enhance 

corporate governance, the Company plans to hold a Increase 

election for 1 new director. After the election, there will be 8 

directors (including 4 independent directors) in the Board of 

Directors of the Company. 

II. This shareholders’ meeting elected 1 director and 1 independent 

director. The new director and independent director will inaugurate 

on the date of being elected until the original service term on June 

22, 2025. 

III. In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Incorporation, the 

election of directors (including independent directors) shall be 

conducted by a candidate nomination system. Therefore, in 

accordance with Article 192-1 of the Company Act, the shareholders 

submitted written nominations of directors and independent 

directors candidates during the nomination period. As approved by 

the board of directors of the Company on May 4, 2023, the list of 

director and independent director candidates and the related 

qualifications are as attached. 

IV. The election of directors is conducted in accordance with the 

“Procedures for Election of Directors” of the Company. For the 

provisions of these procedures, please refer to page 46-49 of this 

meeting handbook. 

V. Please elect the directors. 

Election results: 
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In accordance with Article 192-1 of the Company Act, the list of candidates for director 

and independent director are as follows: 

Title Name Shares educational 
Principal work 

experience 
Current positions Representatives 

Independent 
directors for 
statement of 
reasons for 

serving three 
terms 

Director LIN,JYUN-HAO 488,926 
Chung Shan 
Medical 
University 

Dazan Hospital/ 
Dean

Hospital/Doctor NO N/A

Independent 
Directors 

LIN,BAO-JHU 0 
National 
Taiwan 
University 

KPMG CPA/ 
Accountant 

CHIA HSIN CEMENT 
CORPORATION/ 
Independent Directors 

NO N/A

Discussion 

Motion I (Proposed by the Board of Directors)

Cause: The motion to remove the prohibition of competition for newly elected 

directors (including independent directors) and their representatives is 

proposed for resolution. 

Explanation: I. According to Article 209 of the Company Act, a director who does 

anything for himself or on behalf of another person that is within the 

scope of the company’s business, shall secure approval from the 

shareholders’ meeting. 

II. For the purpose of operational strategy, on the condition of not 

affecting regular business of the Company, the prohibition of 

competition for the directors (including independent directors) and 

their representatives newly elected at this regular shareholders’ 

meeting is proposed to be removed. 

III. Details of the newly elected directors (including independent 

directors) and their representatives in respect of the prohibition of 

competition for outside employment are set forth below. 

IV. Please resolve the proposal. 

Resolution: 
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Title Name Current positions

Director LIN,JYUN-HAO Hospital/Doctor

Independent Directors LIN,BAO-JHU
CHIA HSIN CEMENT CORPORATION/ 
Independent Directors

Extraordinary Motions

Adjournment 
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Appendix I

Independent Auditor's Report 

To APCB INC.  

Audit opinions 
We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of APCB INC. and 

its subsidiaries (the “Group”), which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of from 
January 1 to December 31, 2022 and 2021, and the consolidated statements of 
comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the years then ended, and the 
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting 
policies as of from January 1 to December 31, 2022 and 2021. 

In our opinion, the aforementioned consolidated financial statements fairly present in all 
material respects of the financial position of the Group as of December 31, 2022 and 2021, 
and its consolidated financial performance and its cash flows for each of the years started 
January 1 and ended December 31, 2022 and 2021 in accordance with the Regulations 
Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers. 
Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audits in accordance with the Regulation Governing Auditing and 
Certification of Financial Statements by Certified Public Accountants and auditing standards. 
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. 
The auditors of the firm, subject to the independence regulations, have maintained 
independence from the Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics and perform other 
obligations of such Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient 
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 
Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most 
significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year 
ended December 31, 2022. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the 
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do 
not provide a separate opinion on these matters. Key audit matters for the Group's 
unconsolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2022 are stated as 
follows: 
1. Recognition of revenue 

Please refer to Note 4 (13) in the consolidated financial statements for the 
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accounting policy of the recognition of revenue; please refer to Note 6 (20) in the 
consolidated financial statements for the disclosure of revenue items. 

Description of key audit matters: 
Sales revenue is one of the key indicators for the investors and the management to 

assess the financial or business performance of the Group. In addition, the Group is a 
TWSE listed company, which receives high attention of the investors. Moreover, the 
recognition of revenue, the judgement on time the control of the product being 
transferred, and some of the sales transactions providing discounts, refunds, or rewards 
to customer as agreed in the contract are critical for the fair presentation of the financial 
statements. Therefore, we regard the correctness of recognition of revenue as one of the 
most significant audit matter in this year’s audit. 
Responding audit procedure 

We have executed the following responding audit procedure on the aforementioned 
key audit items: 
• Conduct tests on the effectiveness of the design and implementation of internal 

control related to the recognition of revenues, including randomly selecting samples 
to verify the basic information, transaction terms, and payment receipts of 
customers. 

• Conduct trend analysis on the top 10 customers in terms of sales, including 
comparing the customer list and the amount of sales revenue in the current period, 
last period, and the same period in the previous year, to analyze whether or not 
there is any significant abnormality. In case of any significant changes, we will verify 
them and analyze the causes. 

• Randomly inspect the annual sales transactions to assess the truthfulness of sales 
transactions, the correctness of recognition amount of the sales revenue, and the 
reasonableness of the time being recognized. 

• The reasonableness of the estimates of discounts, refunds, or rewards is verified 
based on the calculation document approved by the management and random 
inspection on the clauses in the sales contracts. 

• Test the samples of sales transactions prior to and after the end of the fiscal year to 
assess whether or not the timing of recognizing the revenue is appropriate. 

2. Impairment assessment on property, plant and equipment  
Please refer to Note 4 (12) Impairment of non-financial asset in the consolidated 

financial reports for the accounting policy for the impairment of property, plant and 
equipment; please refer to Note 5 of the consolidated financial reports for the accounting 
estimates and assumption uncertainty of the impairment of property, plant and 
equipment; please refer to Note 6 (9) of the consolidated financial reports for the 
description on the assessment on the impairment of property, plant and equipment. 
Description of key audit matters: 
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The Group’s subsidiary in Thailand holds property and significant amount of 
manufacturing equipment. Where the profit is less than expected due to poor operating 
performance or other unexpected conditions, the book value of the assets might be 
overestimated. As such, the assets may be in significant impairment risk. During the 
assessment on the impairment of assets, it involved the subjective judgment of the 
management to determine the estimate of the recoverable amount is based on the 
assumption. Any change in the economics or the change in the estimate of the 
Company’s strategy may cause significant impairment loss from significant impairments 
or reversals. Therefore, we regard the assessment on the impairment of property, plant 
and equipment as one of the most significant audit matter in this year’s audit. 
Responding audit procedure: 

We have executed the following responding audit procedure on the aforementioned 
key audit items: 
• Obtained the description on the impairment on the sign of impairment based on the 

self-assessment by the management. 
• Obtained the appraisal report from the external expert delegated by the 

management. 
• Assessed the reasonableness of the methods and data adopted by the 

management when measuring the recoverable amount of assets and delegated the 
internal expert to assess the valuation method and significant assumption used in 
the appraisal report. 

• Assessed the reasonableness of the recognition of impairment loss. 
Other matters 

APCB INC. has prepared the 2022 and 2021 parent company only financial reports, and 
we have presented unqualified audit report for reference. 
Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the 
Consolidated Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the individual 
financial statements in accordance with Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial 
Reports by Securities Issuers, and for such internal control as management determines is 
necessary to enable the preparation of individual financial statements that are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the unconsolidated financial statements, management is also responsible 
for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, 
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless 
management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic 
alternative but to do so. 

Those charged with governance, Including the supervisors and Audit Committee, are 
responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process. 
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated 

financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a 
high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the 
auditing standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists in the 
consolidated financial statements. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error. Misstatements 
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected 
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the consolidated financial 
statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with the auditing standards, we exercise professional 
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also performed the 
following tasks: 
1. Identify and assess the risk of material misstatement of the consolidated financial 

statements due to fraud or error, design and adopt appropriate countermeasures for the 
risks assessed, and obtain sufficient and appropriate audit evidence in order to be used 
as the basis for the opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting 
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, 
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

2. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the internal control of the Group. 

3. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management level. 

4. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty 
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the 
Group to continue as a going concern. In case where we consider that such events or 
circumstances have a material uncertainty, then relevant disclosure of the consolidated 
financial statements are required to be provided in our audit report to allow users of 
consolidated financial statements to be aware of such events or circumstances, or, if 
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on 
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events 
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.  

5. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial 
statements, including relevant notes, and whether the consolidated financial statements 
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair 
presentation. 

6. Obtain sufficient and appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the 
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individual entities of the Group, and express an opinion on consolidated financial 
statements. We handle the guidance, supervision and execution of the audit on the 
Group and are responsible for preparing the opinion for the consolidated financial 
statements. 
We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, 

the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any 
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide the governance units with statements that we have complied with 
relevant matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and we have 
also communicated with the governance units on all relationships and other matters (including 
relevant protective measures) that may be considered to affect the independence of auditors. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine 
those matters that were of most significant in the audit of the Group’s 2022 consolidated 
financial statements and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in 
our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or 
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be 
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would 
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 

KPMG

Chang, Chun-I 

CPA: 

Kuan, Chun-Hsiu 
Securities Competent 
Authority Approval number : 

Jin-Guan-Cheng-Shen-Zi Letter No. 
1050036075
(1999) Tai-Tsai-Cheng (6) No. 18311 

March 24, 2023 
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(Please refer to the notes of the consolidated financial reports for details) 
Chairperson: Tsao, Yueh-Hsia Managerial Officer: Lai, Chin-Tsai Accounting Officer: Tsai, Cheng-Hung 

APCB Inc. 
Statements of Consolidated Comprehensive Income 

From January 1 to December 31 of 2022 and 2021 
Unit: NTD thousand 

2022 2021 
Amount Amount 

4000  Operating revenue (Note 6 (20)): 
4111  Sales revenue $ 7,147,734   103   9,321,393   102  
4170  Less: Sales return  131,579   2   126,793   1  
4190  Sales discount  61,212   1   90,568   1  
4100  Net operating revenue  6,954,943   100   9,104,032   100  
5111  Operating costs (Note 6 (7), (9), (10), (11), (15), (16), and 12)  6,444,508   93   7,839,298   86  
5950  Gross profit   510,435   7   1,264,734   14  
6000  Operating expenses (Note 6 (5), (9), (10), (11), (15), (16), (21), 7 and 12): 
6100  Selling expenses  217,663   3   244,733   3  
6200  Administrative expenses  438,547   6   534,765   6  
6450  Losses on Expected Credit Impairment (gains from reversal)  (3,073)   -   8,865   -  

Total operating expenses  653,137   9   788,363   9  
6900  Net operating profit (loss)  (142,702)   (2)   476,371   5  
7000  Non-operating income and expense (Note 6 (2), (3), (8), (9), (10) (15), (22), 

7): 
7100  Interest income  22,159   -   5,290   -  
7010  Other income  54,949   1   42,639   1  
7020  Other gains or losses  178,828   3   (143,776)   (1)  
7050  Financial costs  (79,454)   (1)   (57,530)   (1)  

Total non-operating incomes and expenses  176,482   3   (153,377)   (1)  
7900  Net income before tax  33,780   1   322,994   4  
7950  Less: Tax expenses (gains) (Note 6 (17))  (1,094)   -   82,579   1  
8200  Current period net profit  34,874   1   240,415   3  
8300  Other comprehensive income (Note 6 (8), (16), (17), and (18)): 
8310  Items not reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
8311  Remeasurement of defined benefit programs  6,303   -   1,703   -  
8349  Less: Income taxes related to the items not re-classified   1,261   -   340   -  

Total amount of items not reclassified subsequently to profit or loss  5,042   -   1,363   -  
8360  Components of Other Comprehensive Income that May Be Reclassified to 

Profit or Loss:
8361  Exchange Differences on Translation of Foreign Financial Statements  214,694   4   (58,594)   (1)  
8399  Less: Income taxes related to the items that may be reclassified   42,939   1   (11,719)   -  

Total Components of Other Comprehensive Income that May Be 
Reclassified to Profit or Loss 

 171,755   3   (46,875)   (1)  

8300  Comprehensive income in the current period  176,797   3   (45,512)   (1)  
8500  Total comprehensive income in the current period $ 211,671  4  194,903  2 

Earnings per share (Unit: NTD) (Note 6 (19))
9750  Basic earnings per share $ 0.22  1.50 
9850  Diluted earnings per share $ 0.22  1.49 
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(Please refer to the notes of the consolidated financial reports for details) 
Chairperson: Tsao, Yueh-Hsia Managerial Officer: Lai, Chin-Tsai Accounting Officer: Tsai, Cheng-Hung 

APCB Inc. 
Statements of Consolidated Cash Flows 

From January 1 to December 31 of 2022 and 2021 
Unit: NTD thousand 

2022 2021 
Cash flows from operating activities: 

Current net profit before income tax $ 33,780   322,994  
Adjustment item: 

Income/expenses items
Depreciation expense  392,053   429,536  
Amortization expenses  2,643  3,106 
Losses on Expected Credit Impairment (gains from reversal)  (3,073)   8,865 
Gain or loss on financial assets and liabilities at FVTPL  (49,562)   (31,642)  
Interest expenses  79,454   57,530  
Interest income  (22,159)   (5,290)  
Dividend income  (14,203)   (5,617)  
Loss on disposal and scraps of property, plant and equipment   13,432   3,454 
Loss on disposal of investments  42,436   -  
Gains from modification of lease  (2)  (53) 

Total income/expenses items  441,019   459,889  
Asset/liability variation related to operating activities 

Net asset variation related to operating activities 
Financial assets designated as at FVTPL  149,972   (85,234)  
Notes receivable  4,052  13,585  
Accounts receivable  1,013,623   (117,123)  
Other receivables  6,247  (5,567)  
Inventories  564,812   (291,288)  
Other current asset  6,263  45,783  
Total net asset variation related to operating activities  1,744,969   (439,844)  

Net liabilities variation related to operating activities 
Financial liabilities at FVTPL   (32,795)   (5,932)  
Notes payable  (86,627)   (21,646)  
Accounts payable  (184,813)   (119,942)  
Other payables  (141,005)   (46,353)  
Refunds liabilities  (12,333)   6,758 
Other current liabilities  (24,249)   63,471  
Net defined benefit liability  (3,269)   (4,229)  

Total net liabilities variation related to operating activities  (485,091)   (127,873)  
Total net assets and liabilities variation related to operating activities  1,259,878   (567,717)  

Total adjustment item  1,700,897   (107,828)  
Cash inflow provided by operating activities  1,734,677   215,166  
Interest received  21,406   6,763 
Interest paid  (77,692)   (63,439)  
Tax paid  (10,829)   (84,094)  

Net cash inflow from operating activities  1,667,562   74,396  
Cash flows from investment activities: 

Financial assets measured at amortized cost  -   (30,212)  
Disposal of financial assets measured at amortized cost  -   34,542  
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment   (178,815)   (261,663)  
Disposal of property, plant and equipment   6,777  3,691 
Acquisition of Intangible Assets  (1,772)   (2,336)  
Increase in other non-current assets  (33)  (580) 
Dividends received  14,203   5,617 

Net cash outflow from investment activities  (159,640)   (250,941)  
Cash flows from financing activities: 

Increase in short-term borrowings  15,593,503   12,899,354  
Decrease in short-term borrowings  (15,679,782)   (13,065,165)  
Increase in short-term notes payable  1,160,270   700,594  
Decrease in short-term notes payable  (1,110,348)   (750,460)  
Borrowed Long-term borrowings  118,862   -  
Repayments of long-term borrowings  (123,900)   (134,414)  
Increase in long-term deferred income  1,429  1,593 
Decrease in guarantee deposit  (10,379)   -  
Repaid principal of lease   (13,928)   (9,559)  
Distribution of cash dividends  (167,894)   (79,950)  

Net cash outflow from financing activities  (232,167)   (438,007)  
Effect of changes in exchange rate on cash and cash equivalents  129,804   86,507  
Increase (decrease) in current cash and equivalents  1,405,559   (528,045)  
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year  2,292,791   2,820,836  
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year $ 3,698,350  2,292,791 
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Independent Auditor's Report 

To APCB INC.  

Audit opinions 
We have audited the accompanying parent company only financial statements of APCB 

INC. (the “Company”), which comprise the parent company only balance sheets as of from 
January 1 to December 31, 2022 and 2021, and the parent only statements of comprehensive 
income, changes in equity and cash flows for the years then ended, and the notes to the 
parent company only financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting 
policies as of from January 1 to December 31, 2022 and 2021. 

In our opinion, the accompanying unconsolidated financial statements present fairly, in 
all material respects, the unconsolidated financial position of the Company as of from January 
1 to December 31, 2022 and 2021, and its unconsolidated financial performance and its 
unconsolidated cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with the Regulations 
Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers of the Republic of 
China. 
Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audits in accordance with the Regulation Governing Auditing and 
Certification of Financial Statements by Certified Public Accountants and auditing standards. 
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Unconsolidated Financial Statements section of our 
report. The auditors of the firm, subject to the independence regulations, have maintained 
independence from the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics and perform other 
obligations of such Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient 
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 
Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most 
significance in our audit of the unconsolidated financial statements of the Company for the 
year ended December 31, 2022. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of 
the unconsolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and 
we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. Key audit matters for the Company's 
unconsolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2022 are stated as 
follows: 
1. Recognition of revenue 

Please refer to Note 4 (13) in the parent company only financial statements for the 
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accounting policy of the recognition of revenue; please refer to Note 6 (19) in the parent 
company only financial statements for the disclosure of revenue items. 
Description of key audit matters: 

Sales revenue is one of the key indicators for the investors and the management to 
assess the financial or business performance of the Company. In addition, the Company 
is a TWSE listed company, which receives high attention of the investors. Moreover, the 
recognition of revenue, the judgement on time the control of the product being 
transferred, and some of the sales transactions providing discounts, refunds, or rewards 
to customer as agreed in the contract are critical for the fair presentation of the financial 
statements. Therefore, we regard the correctness of recognition of revenue as one of the 
most significant audit matter in this year’s audit. 

Responding audit procedure 
We have executed the following responding audit procedure on the aforementioned 

key audit items: 
• Conduct tests on the effectiveness of the design and implementation of internal 

control related to the recognition of revenues, including randomly selecting samples 
to verify the basic information, transaction terms, and payment receipts of 
customers. 

• Conduct trend analysis on the top 10 customers in terms of sales, including 
comparing the customer list and the amount of sales revenue in the current period, 
last period, and the same period in the previous year, to analyze whether or not 
there is any significant abnormality. In case of any significant changes, we will verify 
them and analyze the causes. 

• Randomly inspect the annual sales transactions to assess the truthfulness of sales 
transactions, the correctness of recognition amount of the sales revenue, and the 
reasonableness of the time being recognized. 

• The reasonableness of the estimates of discounts, refunds, or rewards is verified 
based on the calculation document approved by the management and random 
inspection on the clauses in the sales contracts. 

• Test the samples of sales transactions prior to and after the end of the fiscal year to 
assess whether or not the timing of recognizing the revenue is appropriate. 

2. Impairment assessment on investments accounted for using the equity method 
Please refer to Note 4 (12) in the parent company only financial statements for the 

accounting policy of impairment of non-financial assets; please refer to Note 5 in the 
parent company only financial statement for the accounting estimates and uncertainty of 
assumption for the impairment assessment on investments accounted for using the 
equity method; please refer to Note 6 (7) investments accounted for using the equity 
method for the description on the impairment on the investments accounted for using the 
equity method. 
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Description of key audit matters: 
APCB Electronics (Thailand) Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of APCB INC. has suffered long-

term operating losses. We found the impairment of the investment exists. This 
investment accounted for using the equity method is a significant investment of the 
Company and the carrying amount is high. Therefore, we regard the impairment 
assessment on investments accounted for using the equity method as one of the most 
significant audit matter in this year’s audit. 
Responding audit procedure 

We have executed the following responding audit procedure on the aforementioned 
key audit items: 
• We communicated with the audit personnel of the Company, including providing 

audit instruction mail and obtaining the audited Group reporting information. 
• We discussed with the audit personnel regarding the audit plan and the audit 

procedure and matters that require special attention in the middle and the end of the 
period via emails and virtual meetings. 

• Reviewed the audit procedure of asset impairment assessment conducted by the 
audit personnel of the Company on APCB Electronics (Thailand) Co., Ltd., including 
obtaining the description on the sign of impairment based on the self-assessment by 
the management, obtaining the appraisal report from the external expert delegated 
by the management, assessing the objectivity and professionalism of the external 
expert, assessing the reasonableness of the methods and data adopted by the 
management when measuring the recoverable amount of assets, delegating the 
internal expert to assess the valuation method and significant assumption used in 
the appraisal report, and assessing the reasonableness of the recognition of 
impairment loss. 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the 
Unconsolidated Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the 
unconsolidated financial statements in accordance with the Regulations Governing the 
Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers, and for necessary internal control as 
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of unconsolidated financial 
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the unconsolidated financial statements, management is also responsible 
for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, 
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless 
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no 
realistic alternative but to do so. 

Those charged with governance, Including the supervisors and Audit Committee, are 
responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process. 
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the unconsolidated Financial Statements 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the unconsolidated 

financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a 
high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the 
auditing standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists in the 
unconsolidated financial statements. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error. 
Misstatements are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could 
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of 
the unconsolidated financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with the auditing standards, we exercise professional 
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also performed the 
following tasks: 
1. Identify and assess the risk of material misstatement of the unconsolidated financial 

statements due to fraud or error, design and adopt appropriate countermeasures for the 
risks assessed, and obtain sufficient and appropriate audit evidence in order to be used 
as the basis for the opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting 
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, 
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

2. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the internal control of the Company. 

3. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management level. 

4. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty 
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the 
Company to continue as a going concern. In case where we consider that such events or 
circumstances have a material uncertainty, then relevant disclosure of the 
unconsolidated financial statements are required to be provided in our audit report to 
allow users of unconsolidated financial statements to be aware of such events or 
circumstances, or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our 
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s 
report. However, future events or conditions may cause APCB INC. to cease to continue 
as a going concern.  

5. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the unconsolidated financial 
statements, including relevant notes, and whether the unconsolidated financial 
statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves 
fair presentation. 
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6. Obtain sufficient and appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the 
entity of the Company, and express an opinion on unconsolidated financial statements. 
We handle the guidance, supervision and execution of the audit on the Company and are 
responsible for preparing the opinion for the parent company only financial statements. 
We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, 

the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any 
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide the governance units with statements that we have complied with 
relevant matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and we have 
also communicated with the governance units on all relationships and other matters (including 
relevant protective measures) that may be considered to affect the independence of auditors. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine 
those matters that were of most significant in the audit of the Company’s 2022 unconsolidated 
financial statements and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in 
our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or 
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be 
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would 
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 

KPMG

Chang, Chun-I 

CPA:   

Kuan, Chun-Hsiu 
Securities Competent 
Authority Approval 
number 

: 
Jin-Guan-Cheng-Shen-Zi Letter No. 
1050036075 
(1999) Tai-Tsai-Cheng (6) No. 18311

March 24, 2023 
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(Please refer to the notes of the parent company only financial reports for details) 
Chairperson: Tsao, Yueh-Hsia Managerial Officer: Lai, Chin-

Tsai 
Accounting Officer: Tsai, Cheng-
Hung 

APCB INC. 
Statements of Comprehensive Income 

From January 1 to December 31 of 2022 and 2021 
Unit: NTD thousand

2022 2021
Amount % Amount %

4000 Operating revenue (Note 6 (19) 7): 
4111 Sales revenue $ 1,470,424  102  2,432,456  102 
4170 Less: Sales return  5,293  -  2,154  - 
4190 Sales discount  30,222  2  58,233  2 
4100 Net operating revenue  1,434,909  100  2,372,069  100 
5000 Operating costs (Note 6 (6), (8), (9), (10), (14), (15), 7 and 12)  1,542,737  108  2,124,337  90 
5950 Gross profit (loss)  (107,828)  (8)  247,732  10 
6000 Operating expenses (Note 6 (4), (8), (9), (10), (14), (15), (20), 7 and 12): 
6100 Selling expenses  23,424  2  37,289  2 
6200 Administrative expenses  82,954  6  127,101  5 
6450 Losses on Expected Credit Impairment (gains from reversal)  (3,560)  -  2,376  - 

Total operating expenses  102,818  8  166,766  7 
6900 Net operating profit (loss)  (210,646)  (16)  80,966  3 
7000 Non-operating income and expense (Note 6 (2), (3), (8), (14), (21), 7): 
7100 Interest income  7,705  1  510  - 
7010 Other income  100,059  7  77,418  3 
7020 Other gains or losses  208,063  15  (35,915)  (2) 
7050 Financial costs  (31,169)  (2)  (24,132)  (1) 
7370 Share of other profits/losses of subsidiaries, associated companies, and joint 

venture accounted for using equity method  (29,584)  (2)  202,013  9 
Total non-operating incomes and expenses  255,074  19  219,894  9 

7900 Net income before tax  44,428  3  300,860  12 
7950 Less: Tax expenses (Note 6 (16))  9,554  1  60,445  3 
8200 Current period net profit  34,874  2  240,415  9 
8300 Other comprehensive income (Note 6 (15), (16), and (17)): 
8310 Items not reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
8311 Remeasurement of defined benefit programs  6,095  -  3,339  - 
8331 Remeasurement of defined benefit programs subsidiaries, associates, and 

joint venture 
 208  -  (1,636)  - 

8349 Less: Income taxes related to the items not re-classified   1,261  -  340  - 
Total amount of items not reclassified subsequently to profit or loss  5,042  -  1,363  - 

8360 Components of Other Comprehensive Income that May Be Reclassified to 
Profit or Loss:

8361 Exchange Differences on Translation of Foreign Financial Statements  185,635  13  (50,922)  (2) 
8380 Share of other comprehensive income of subsidiaries, associated companies, 

and joint venture accounted for using equity method 
 23,247  2  (6,137)  - 

8399 Less: Income taxes related to the items that may be reclassified   37,127  3  (10,184)  - 
Total Components of Other Comprehensive Income that May Be 
Reclassified to Profit or Loss 

 171,755  12  (46,875)  (2) 

8300 Comprehensive income in the current period  176,797  12  (45,512)  (2) 
8500 Total comprehensive income in the current period $ 211,671  14  194,903  7 

Earnings per share of the Company (Unit: NTD) (Note 6 (18))
9750 Basic earnings per share $ 0.22  1.50 
9850 Diluted earnings per share $ 0.22  1.49 
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(Please refer to the notes of the parent company only financial reports for details) 
Chairperson: Tsao, Yueh-Hsia Managerial Officer: Lai, Chin-Tsai Accounting Officer: Tsai, Cheng-Hung 

APCB INC. 
Statements of Cash Flows 

From January 1 to December 31 of 2022 and 2021 
Unit: NTD thousand

2022 2021
Cash flows from operating activities: 

Current net profit before income tax $ 44,428  300,860 
Adjustment item: 

Income/expenses items
Depreciation expense  58,515  55,516 
Amortization expenses  1,093  1,279 
Losses on Expected Credit Impairment (gains from reversal)  (3,560)  2,376 
Gain or loss on financial assets and liabilities at FVTPL  (47,044)  (22,986) 
Interest expenses  31,169  24,132 
Interest income  (7,705)  (510) 
Dividend income  (14,203)  (5,617) 
Share of other profits/losses of subsidiaries, associated companies, and joint venture accounted for using 
equity method 

 29,584  (202,013) 

Gains on disposal of property, plant and equipment  (467)  (679) 
Total income/expenses items  47,382  (148,502) 

Asset/liability variation related to operating activities   
Net asset variation related to operating activities   
Financial assets designated as at FVTPL  142,066  (77,443) 
Notes receivable  1,509  (1,766) 
Accounts receivable  521,405  (37,511) 
Accounts receivable - Related party  (7,903)  (4,049) 
Other receivables  (12,004)  1,715 
Other receivables - Related party 9,260  (62,652) 
Inventories  203,844  (43,638) 
Other current asset  428  7,045 

Total net asset variation related to operating activities  858,605  (218,299) 
Net liabilities variation related to operating activities   

Financial liabilities at FVTPL   (32,794)  (5,932) 
Notes payable  (88,787)  (17,364) 
Accounts payable  (21,369)  (25,097) 
Accounts payable - Related party  (17,728)  (54,480) 
Other payables  (44,202)  (5,738) 
Refunds liabilities  (7,760)  5,575 
Other current liabilities  (5,125)  12,164 
Net defined benefit liability  (6,062)  (2,973) 

Total net liabilities variation related to operating activities  (223,827)  (93,845) 
Total net assets and liabilities variation related to operating activities  634,778  (312,144) 

Total adjustment item  682,160  (460,646) 
Cash inflow (outflow) provided by operating activities  726,588  (159,786) 
Interest received  7,638  585 
Interest paid  (30,305)  (24,365) 
Tax paid  (20,719)  (71,256) 

Net cash inflow (outflow) provided by operating activities  683,202  (254,822) 
Cash flows from investment activities: 

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment   (33,534)  (85,102) 
Disposal of property, plant and equipment  467  679 
Acquisition of Intangible Assets  -  (1,240) 
Decrease (increase) of other non-current assets (675)  838 
Dividends received  413,092  372,032 

Net cash inflow from investment activities:  379,350  287,207 
Cash flows from financing activities: 

Increase in short-term borrowings  10,863,101  8,997,930 
Decrease in short-term borrowings  (10,706,101)  (9,209,930) 
Increase in short-term notes payable  1,160,270  700,594 
Decrease in short-term notes payable  (1,110,348)  (750,460) 
Repayments of long-term borrowings  (104,415)  (134,414) 
Repaid principal of lease   (7,481)  (7,264) 
Distribution of cash dividends  (167,894)  (79,950) 

Net cash outflow from financing activities  (72,868)  (483,494) 
Increase (decrease) in current cash and equivalents  989,684  (451,109) 
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year  949,720  1,400,829 
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year $ 1,939,404  949,720 
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APCB INC. 
Rules of Procedure for Shareholders’ Meetings  

Article I. The shareholders’ meeting of the Company shall proceed in 

accordance with these Rules. Matters not specified in these Rules shall 

be undertaken in accordance with applicable laws and the Company’s 

articles of incorporation. 

Article II. Attending shareholders (or proxies) shall bring their attendance cards 

and hand in a sign-in card in lieu of signing in. 

The number of shares present is calculated based on the number of 

shares reported on the attendance card and the virtual meeting 

platform, plus the number of shares exercising the voting rights by 

correspondence or electronic means 

In the event of a virtual shareholders’ meeting, shareholders wishing 

to attend the meeting online shall register with the Company two days 

before the meeting date. 

Article III. The presence of shareholders in a shareholders’ meeting and their 

voting thereof shall be calculated in accordance with the number of 

shares. 

Article IV. The place where the shareholders’ meeting is held shall be in the 

county or city where the Company is located. The time for 

commencing the said meeting shall not be earlier than 9 o’clock in the 

morning or later than 3 o’clock in the afternoon. 

When the Company holds a virtual shareholders’ meeting, the venue 

of the meeting shall not be restricted as described in the proceeding 

paragraph. 

The time for accepting shareholders’ registration shall be 30 minutes 

prior to the commencement of the meeting. 

In the event of a virtual shareholders’ meeting, registration shall be 

accepted at the virtual meeting platform at least 30 minutes prior to 

the commencement of the meeting. Shareholders who have completed 

the registration shall be deemed to be present in person at the meeting. 

Appendix II 
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Article V. The Company may designate its lawyer, certified public accountant or 

other relevant persons to attend the shareholders’ meeting. 

Those handling the business of a shareholders’ meeting shall wear an 

identification card or a badge. 

Article VI. The Company, beginning from the time it accepts shareholder 

attendance registrations, shall make an uninterrupted audio and video 

recording of the registration procedure, the proceedings of the 

shareholders’ meeting, and the voting and vote counting procedures. 

The recorded materials of the preceding paragraph shall be retained 

for at least one year. If, however, a shareholder files a lawsuit pursuant 

to Article 189 of the Company Act, the recording shall be retained 

until the conclusion of the litigation. 

When the Company convene a virtual shareholders’ meeting, the 

Company shall retain the relevant information of the shareholders and 

continuously record and videotape the entire virtual meeting without 

interruption from beginning to end. 

The information and audio and video recording under the preceding 

paragraph shall be properly kept by the company during the entirety of 

the Company’s existence, and copies of the audio and video recording 

shall be provided to and kept by the entity engaged to handle video 

conferencing matters. 

Article VII. When it is time to convene a shareholders’ meeting, the chairperson 

shall immediately convene the meeting, provided, however, that if the 

shareholders present do not represent a majority of the total amount of 

issued shares, the chairperson may postpone the meeting, provided, 

however, that the postponement of the said meeting shall be limited to 

two times, and the total time postponed shall not exceed one hour. If 

the meeting has been postponed for two times, but the shareholders 

present still do not represent one-third of the total amount of issued 

shares, a tentative resolution may be adopted in accordance with 

Article 175 of the Company Act. 

Before the close of the said meeting if the shareholders present 

represent a majority of the total amount of issued shares, the 

chairperson may present the tentative resolution so adopted to the 

meeting for resolution. 
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Article VIII. If a shareholders’ meeting is called by the board of directors, the 

proceedings of the meeting shall be formulated by the board of 

directors, and the meeting shall proceed in accordance with the said 

proceedings. The proceedings shall not be changed without a 

resolution made by the shareholders’ meeting. 

If a shareholders’ meeting shall be called by any other person than the 

board of directors, the preceding provisions shall apply mutatis 

mutandis to the said meeting. 

The chairperson shall not adjourn a meeting without resolution 

adopted by shareholders if the motions (including extraordinary 

motions) covered in the proceedings so arranged in the above two 

Paragraphs shall not have been resolved. 

Changes to how the Company convenes its shareholders’ meeting 

shall be resolved by the board of directors, and shall be made no later 

than mailing of the shareholders’ meeting notice. 

After close of the said meeting, shareholders shall not elect another 

chairperson to hold another meeting at the same place or at any other 

place, and the resolutions made by them are ipso facto ineffective. 

Article IX. A shareholder wishing to speak in a shareholders’ meeting shall first 

fill out a slip, specifying therein the major points of his speech, his/her 

serial number as a shareholder (or number of attendance) and his/her 

name, and the chairperson shall determine his/her order of giving a 

speech. 

A shareholder who submits his slip for a speech but does not actually 

speak shall be considered as not having given a speech. If the contents 

of his/her speech shall be different from those specified on the slip, the 

contents of his/her speech shall prevail. 

When a shareholder is giving a speech, the other shareholders shall 

not interrupt unless they have obtained the prior consent from the 

chairperson and the said shareholder, and the chairperson may prevent 

others from interrupting. 

Article X. A shareholder shall not speak more than two times for one motion, 

unless he/she has obtained the prior consent from the chairperson, and 

each speech shall not exceed 5 minutes. If a shareholder violates the 

above provisions or his speech exceeds the scope of the motion, the 

chairperson may prevent him from doing so. 
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Article XI. When a juristic person shareholder appoints two or more 

representatives to attend a shareholders’ meeting, only one of the 

representatives so appointed may speak on the same proposal. 

Article XII. After a shareholder has given a speech, the chairperson may 

personally or designate relevant person to respond. 

Article XIII. When the chairperson considers that the discussion for a motion has 

reached the extent for making a resolution, he/she may announce 

discontinuance of the discussion and submit the motion for resolution. 

Article XIV. Voting rights may be exercised in writing or electronically at the 

shareholders’ meeting of the Corporation. The method of exercise 

shall be specified in the shareholders’ meeting notice. A shareholder 

exercising voting rights by correspondence or electronic means will be 

deemed to have attended the meeting in person, but to have waived 

his/her rights with respect to the extraordinary motions and 

amendments to original proposals of that meeting. 

A shareholder intending to exercise voting rights by correspondence 

or electronic means under the preceding paragraph shall deliver a 

written declaration of intent to the Company two days before the date 

of the shareholders’ meeting. When duplicate declarations of intent are 

delivered, the one received earliest shall prevail, except when a 

declaration is made to cancel the earlier declaration of intent. 

After a shareholder has exercised voting rights by correspondence or 

electronic means, in the event the shareholder intends to attend the 

shareholders’ meeting in person or online, a declaration of intent to 

retract the voting rights already exercised under the preceding 

paragraph shall be made known to the Company, by the same means 

by which the voting rights were exercised, before two business days 

before the date of the shareholders’ meeting. If the notice of retraction 

is submitted after that time, the voting rights already exercised by 

correspondence or electronic means shall prevail. When a shareholder 

has exercised voting rights both by correspondence or electronic 

means and by appointing a proxy to attend a shareholders’ meeting, 

the voting rights exercised by the proxy in the meeting shall prevail. 

Except as otherwise provided in the Company Act and in the 
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Company’s articles of incorporation, the passage of a proposal shall 

require an affirmative vote of a majority of the voting rights 

represented by the attending shareholders. At the time of a vote, for 

each proposal, the chairperson or a person designated by the 

chairperson shall first announce the total number of voting rights 

represented by the attending shareholders, followed by a poll of the 

shareholders. 

A shareholder shall be entitled to one vote for each share held, except 

when the shares are restricted shares or are deemed non-voting shares 

under Article 179 of the Company Act. 

Except for trust enterprises or stock agencies approved by the 

competent authority, when a person who acts as the proxy for two or 

more shareholders, the number of voting power represented by 

him/her shall not exceed 3% of the total number of voting shares of 

the company, otherwise, the portion of excessive voting power shall 

not be counted. 

Article XV. When there is an amendment or an alternative to a proposal, the 

chairperson shall present the amended or alternative proposal together 

with the original proposal and decide the order in which they will be 

put to a vote. When any one among them is passed, the other 

proposals will then be deemed rejected, and no further voting shall be 

required. 

Article XVI. Vote monitoring and counting personnel for the voting on a proposal 

shall be appointed by the chairperson, provided that all monitoring 

personnel shall be shareholders of the Company. 

Vote counting for proposals or elections shall be conducted in public 

at the place of the shareholders’ meeting, and voting results, including 

the tally of weighted votes, shall be reported on-site immediately and 

recorded in writing upon completion of the vote counting. 

In the event of a virtual shareholders’ meeting, votes shall be counted 

at once after the chair announces the voting session ends, and results 

of votes and elections shall be announced immediately. 

Article XVII. When a meeting is in progress, the chairperson may announce a break 

based on time considerations. If a force majeure event occurs, the 

chairperson may rule the meeting temporarily suspended and 
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announce a time when, in view of the circumstances, the meeting will 

be resumed. 

Article XVIII. The chairperson may direct the proctors or security personnel to help 

maintain order at the meeting place. When proctors or security 

personnel help maintain order at the meeting place, they shall wear an 

identification card or armband bearing the word “Proctor.” 

When a shareholder violates the rules of procedure and defies the 

chairperson’s correction, obstructing the proceedings and refusing to 

heed calls to stop, the chairperson may direct the proctors or security 

personnel to escort the shareholder from the meeting. 

Article XIX. Resolutions adopted at a shareholders’ meeting shall be recorded in 

the minutes of the meeting, which shall be affixed with the signature 

or seal of the chairperson of the meeting and shall be distributed to all 

shareholders of the Company within 20 days after the close of the 

meeting. The preparation and distribution of the minutes of 

shareholders’ meeting may be effected by means of electronic 

transmission. 

The Company may distribute the meeting minutes of the preceding 

paragraph by means of a public announcement made through the 

MOPS. 

Article XX. The election of directors at a shareholders’ meeting shall be held in 

accordance with the applicable election and appointment rules adopted 

by the Company, and the voting results shall be announced on-site 

immediately. 

Article XXI. These Rules shall take effect after having been submitted to and 

approved by a shareholders’ meeting. Subsequent amendments thereto 

shall be effected in the same manner. 
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APCB INC. 

Articles of Incorporation  

Chapter 1 General Provisions 

Article I. The Company shall be incorporated under the Company Act, and its 

name shall be APCB Inc. 

Article II. The scope of business of the Company shall be as follows: 

(I) CC01080 Electronics Components Manufacturing 

(II) F119010 Wholesale of Electronic Materials 

(III) F219010 Retail Sale of Electronic Materials 

(IV) ZZ99999 All business activities that are not prohibited or restricted 

by law, except those that are subject to special approval 

Article II-I. The Company may provide endorsement and guarantee and act as a 

guarantor for business purpose in accordance with the rules and 

regulations of securities competent authorities. 

Article II-II. The total amount of the Company’s equity investment shall not be subject 

to the restriction of not more than forty percent of the Company’s paid-in 

capital. 

Article III. The Company headquarters in New Taipei City. With the resolution made 

by the board of directors, the Company may establish branches within 

and without of the territory of the Republic of China. 

Article IV. (Deleted) 

Chapter 2 Shares 

Article V. The total authorized capital of the Company is NT$2.5 billion, divided 

into 250 million shares, with a par value at NT$10 each. The board of 

directors is authorized to issue such shares in installments based on the 

business requirement. 

A total of NT$100 million, representing 10 million shares, shall be 

reserved from the total capital stated in the preceding paragraph for the 

issuance of employee stock options, and the board of directors is 

authorized to issue the stock options in installments. 

Article VI. With an approval made by two-thirds or more of the attending 

shareholders who represent a majority of the total number of its 

outstanding shares, the Company may issue employee stock options at a 

price lower than the closing price of the Company’s shares on the date of 

Appendix III 
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issuance or transfer them to employees at a price lower than the average 

price of the shares actually bought back. 

Article VII. The share certificates of the Company shall be in registered form, signed 

by, or affixed with the seals of, at least three directors, and authenticated 

by the competent governmental authority upon issuance pursuant to laws. 

When issuing new shares, the Company may print a share certificate in 

respect of the full number of shares to be issued at that time, and shall 

arrange for the certificate to be kept or registered by a centralized 

securities custodian institution; the same applies to other marketable 

securities. 

Article VIII. Registration for transfer of shares shall be suspended for 60 days before 

the day of a regular shareholders’ meeting, for 30 days before the day of 

any special shareholders’ meeting, and for 5 days before the day on 

which dividends or any other benefit is scheduled to be paid by the 

Company. 

Chapter 3 Shareholders’ Meeting 

Article IX. Shareholders’ meetings of the Company are of two kinds: regular 

shareholders’ meetings and special shareholders’ meetings. The regular 

shareholders’ meeting is called once per year within 6 months of the end 

of each fiscal year. Special shareholders’ meetings may be called in 

accordance with laws whenever necessary. 

Article X. Where a shareholder is unable to attend a meeting, he/she may appoint a 

proxy to represent him/her and specify the scope authorization in the 

proxy form issued by the Company. The use of proxy forms shall be 

subject to the Company Act and the Regulations Governing the Use of 

Proxies for Attendance at Shareholders’ Meetings of Public Companies 

promulgated by securities competent authorities. 

Article XI. Each shareholder of the Company shall receive one voting right for each 

share. However, restricted a director or a director who has a situation 

provided under Article 179 of the Company Act shall not have the voting 

right. 

Article XII. Except as otherwise provided by the Company Act, a meeting shall only 

be held when shareholders representing a majority of the total number of 

issued shares have attended. A resolution shall be adopted by the consent 

of a majority of the votes represented by those in attendance at the 

meeting 
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Article XII-I. The Company’s shareholders’ meetings shall be conducted in accordance 

with the “Rules of Procedure for Shareholders’ Meetings.” 

Article XII-II. The shareholders’ meeting can be held in the form of virtual conference 

or other audiovisual means, as announced by the Ministry of Economic 

Affairs. 

Chapter 4 Directors 

Article XIII. The Company shall have seven to nine directors. The board of directors 

is authorized to determine the number of directors. The term of office of 

directors is 3 years, and the directors shall be elected from persons 

having legal capacity at a shareholders’ meeting and shall be eligible for 

re-elections. The total number of shares of the Company’s registered 

stock held by all directors of the Company shall be in compliance with 

the the “Rules and Review Procedures for Director and Supervisor Share 

Ownership Ratios at Public Companies” issued by the competent 

securities authorities. 

The Company shall adopt the candidate nomination system for its 

election of directors in accordance with Article 192-1 of the Company 

Act. 

In accordance with the Securities and Exchange Act, the number of 

independent directors of the Company shall not be less than three and 

shall not be less than one-fifth of the number of directors. Independent 

directors are subject to regulations of the competent securities 

authorities. 

Article XIII-I. In compliance with Articles 14-4 of the Securities and Exchange Act, the 

Company shall establish an audit committee. The Audit Committee shall 

be responsible for those responsibilities of Supervisors specified under 

the Company Act, the Securities and Exchange Act and other applicable 

regulations. 

Article XIV. The board of directors shall consist of the directors of the Company; the 

chairperson of the board of directors shall be elected from among the 

directors by a majority of directors in attendance at a meeting attended by 

at least two-thirds of the directors. The chairperson of the board of 

directors shall represent the Company in external matters. 

A notice setting forth the purpose of the meeting shall be given to each 

director no later than 7 days prior to a board meeting. Nonetheless, a 

board meeting may be convened at any time in case of emergency. A 

meeting of the board of directors shall be called in writing, via e-mail or 
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facsimile. 

Article XV. If chairperson of the board of directors is on leave of absence or is unable 

to exercise his/her duties for any reason, his/her proxy is subject to the 

provisions of Article 208 of the Company Act. If a director is on leave of 

absence or is unable to attend a board meeting for any reason, he/she may 

appoint another director as proxy to attend the meeting in accordance 

with Article 205 of the Company Act. 

Article XVI. The remuneration to all directors shall be assessed by the remuneration 

committee, and the board of directors is authorized to decide the 

remuneration to all directors at a rate consistent with general practices in 

the industry. 

Article XVI-I. The Company may take out liability insurance for the directors with 

respect to the liabilities that might arise from the performance of duties 

during their term of office. 

Chapter 5 Manager 

Article XVII. The Company may appoint one general manager and several deputy 

general mangers whose commissioning, decommissioning and pay rate 

shall be as pursuant to Article 29 of the Company Act. 

Chapter 6 Accounting 

Article XVIII. After the close of each fiscal year, the following reports shall be prepared 

by the board of directors. The reports shall be submitted to the audit 

committee for review 30 days prior to the regular shareholders’ meeting 

and thereafter submitted to the regular shareholders’ meeting for 

recognition. 

(I) Business Report. 

(II) Financial Statements. 

(III) Proposal Concerning the Distribution of Earnings or offset of 

Losses. 

Article XIX. If the Company makes a profit in a year, it shall set aside not less than 

5% for remuneration to employees and not more than 3% for 

remuneration to directors. However, if the Company has accumulated 

losses, the Company shall first reserve an amount to offset the losses. 

Article XX. If there is profit in the Company’s annual financial statements, the 

Company shall first pay taxes and offset accumulated losses, and then set 

aside 10% as legal reserve and set aside special reserve in accordance 

with the law. If there remains surplus, the board of directors shall, after 

adding the undistributed earnings from previous years, prepare a proposal 
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for distribution and submit it to the shareholders for resolution. 

To meet the Company’s future needs for equipment replacement and 

expansion, cash dividends shall be distributed at a rate of not less than 

10% of the total dividends, and the rest shall be distributed in the form of 

stock dividends. 

Chapter 7 Supplementary Provisions 

Acrticle XXI Any matters not sufficiently provided for in these Articles of 

Incorporation shall be handled in accordance with the Company Act. 

Acrticle XXII These Articles of Incorporation were established on November 21, 1981. 

The 1st amendment was made on February 27, 1983. 

The 2nd amendment was made on September 15, 1985. 

The 3rd amendment was made on August 10, 1988. 

The 4th amendment was made on August 8, 1997. 

The 5th amendment was made on December 12, 1998. 

The 6th amendment was made on May 30, 1999. 

The 7th amendment was made on June 18, 2000. 

The 8th amendment was made on June 3, 2001. 

The 9th amendment was made on June 27, 2002. 

The 10th amendment was made on June 24, 2003. 

The 11th amendment was made on June 24, 2004. 

The 12th amendment was made on December 31, 2004. 

The 13th amendment was made on June 14, 2005. 

The 14th amendment was made on June 14, 2006. 

The 15th amendment was made on June 13, 2007. 

The 16th amendment was made on June 13, 2008. 

The 17th amendment was made on June 15, 2010. 

The 18th amendment was made on June 22, 2012. 

The 19th amendment was made on June 21, 2016. 

The 20th amendment was made on June 15, 2017. 

The 21st amendment was made on June 23, 2022. 
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APCB INC. 

Procedures for Election of Directors 

Article I. To ensure a just, fair, and open election of directors, these Procedures are 

adopted pursuant to Articles 21 and 41 of the Corporate Governance 

Best-Practice Principles for TWSE/GTSM Listed Companies. 

Article II. Except as otherwise provided by law and regulation or by the Company’s 

articles of incorporation, elections of directors shall be conducted in 

accordance with these Procedures. 

Article III.  The overall composition of the board of directors shall be taken into 

consideration in the selection of the Company’s directors. The 

composition of the board of directors shall be determined by taking 

diversity into consideration and formulating an appropriate policy on 

diversity based on the Company’s business operations, operating 

dynamics, and development needs. 

It is advisable that the policy include, without being limited to, the 

following two general standards: 

I. Basic requirements and values: Gender, age, nationality, and 

culture. 

II. Professional knowledge and skills: A professional background, 

professional skills, and industry experience. 

Each board member shall have the necessary knowledge, skill, and 

experience to perform their duties; the abilities that must be present in the 

board as a whole are as follows: 

I. The ability to make judgments about operations. 

II. Accounting and financial analysis ability. 

III. Business management ability. 

IV. Crisis management ability. 

V. Knowledge of the industry. 

VI. An international market perspective. 

VII. Leadership ability. 

VIII. Decision-making ability. 

More than half of the directors shall be persons who have neither a 

spousal relationship nor a relationship within the second degree of 

Appendix IV 
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kinship with any other director. 

Article IV. (Deleted) 

Article V. The qualifications and election of the independent directors of the 

Company shall comply with the “Regulations Governing Appointment of 

Independent Directors and Compliance Matters for Public Companies.” 

Article VI. Elections of directors at the Company shall be conducted in accordance 

with the candidate nomination system and procedures set out in Article 

192-1 of the Company Act. The Company shall review the qualifications, 

education, working experience, background, and the existence of any 

other matters set forth in Article 30 of the Company Act with respect to 

nominee directors and may not arbitrarily add requirements for 

documentation of other qualifications. It shall further provide the results 

of the review to shareholders for their reference, so that qualified 

directors will be elected. 

When the number of directors falls below five due to the dismissal of a 

director for any reason, the Company shall hold a by-election for director 

at the next following shareholders’ meeting. When the number of 

directors falls short by one-third of the total number prescribed by the 

articles of incorporation, the Company shall convene a special 

shareholders’ meeting within 60 days of the occurrence of that fact to 

hold a by-election for directors. 

When the number of independent directors falls below that required 

under the proviso of Article 14-2, paragraph 1 of the Securities and 

Exchange Act, a by-election shall be held at the next shareholders’ 

meeting to fill the vacancy. When the independent directors are dismissed 

en masse, a special shareholders’ meeting shall be called within 60 days 

from the date of occurrence to hold a by-election to fill the vacancies. 

Article VII. The cumulative voting method shall be used for election of the directors 

at the Company. Each share will have voting rights in number equal to 

the directors to be elected, and may be cast for a single candidate or split 

among multiple candidates. 

Article VIII. The board of directors shall prepare separate ballots for directors in 

numbers corresponding to the directors or supervisors to be elected. The 
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number of voting rights associated with each ballot shall be specified on 

the ballots, which shall then be distributed to the attending shareholders 

at the shareholders’ meeting. Attendance card numbers printed on the 

ballots may be used instead of recording the names of voting 

shareholders. 

Article IX. The number of directors will be as specified in this Company’s articles of 

incorporation, with voting rights separately calculated for independent 

and non-independent director positions. Those receiving ballots 

representing the highest numbers of voting rights will be elected 

sequentially according to their respective numbers of votes. When two or 

more persons receive the same number of votes, thus exceeding the 

specified number of positions, they shall draw lots to determine the 

winner, with the chairperson drawing lots on behalf of any person not in 

attendance. 

Article X. Before the election begins, the chairperson shall appoint a number of 

persons with shareholder status to perform the respective duties of vote 

monitoring and counting personnel. The ballot boxes shall be prepared by 

the board of directors and publicly checked by the vote monitoring 

personnel before voting commences. 

Article XI. (Deleted) 

Article XII. A ballot is invalid under any of the following circumstances: 

I. The ballot was not prepared by a person with the right to convene. 

II. A blank ballot is placed in the ballot box. 

III. The writing is unclear and indecipherable or has been altered. 

IV.  The candidate whose name is entered in the ballot does not conform 

to the director candidate list. 

V. Other words or marks are entered in addition to the number of 

voting rights allotted. 

Article XIII. The voting rights shall be calculated on site immediately after the end of 

the poll, and the results of the calculation shall be announced by the 

chairperson on the site. 

The ballots for the election referred to in the preceding paragraph shall be 

sealed with the signatures of the monitoring personnel and kept in proper 
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custody for at least one year. If, however, a shareholder files a lawsuit 

pursuant to Article 189 of the Company Act, the ballots shall be retained 

until the conclusion of the litigation. 

Article XIV. The board of directors of this Corporation shall issue notifications to the 

persons elected as directors. 

Article XV. These Procedures, and any amendments hereto, shall be implemented 

after approval by a shareholders’ meeting. 
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APCB INC. 
Rules of Procedure for Board of Directors Meetings (Pre-amended) 

Article I. To establish a strong governance system and sound supervisory 

capabilities for the Company’s board of directors and to strengthen 

management capabilities, these Rules are adopted pursuant to Article 2 of 

the Regulations Governing Procedure for Board of Directors Meetings of 

Public Companies. 

Article II. With respect to the board of directors meetings of the Company, the main 

agenda items, working procedures, required content of meeting minutes, 

public announcements, and other compliance requirements shall be 

handled in accordance with the provisions of these Rules. 

Article III. The board of directors shall meet at least quarterly. 

A notice of the reasons for convening a board meeting shall be given to 

each director and supervisor before 7 days before the meeting is 

convened. In emergency circumstances, however, a board meeting may 

be called on shorter notice. 

The notice to be given under the preceding paragraph may be effected by 

means of electronic transmission with the prior consent of the recipients. 

All matters set forth under Article 12, paragraph 1 of these Rules shall be 

specified in the notice of the reasons for convening a board meeting. 

None of those matters may be raised by an extraordinary motion except 

in the case of an emergency or for other legitimate reason. 

Article IV. The designated unit responsible for the board meetings of the Company 

shall be the finance department. 

The unit responsible for board meetings shall draft agenda items and 

prepare sufficient meeting materials, and shall deliver them together with 

the notice of the meeting. 

A director who is of the opinion that the meeting materials provided are 

insufficient may request their supplementation by the unit responsible for 

board meetings. If a director is of the opinion that materials concerning 

any proposal are insufficient, the deliberation of such proposal may be 

postponed by a resolution of the board of directors. 

Appendix V 

-50-



Article V. When a board meeting is held, an attendance book shall be provided for 

signing-in by attending directors, which shall be made available for 

future reference. 

Directors shall attend board meetings in person. A director unable to 

attend in person may appoint another director to attend the meeting in his 

or her place in accordance with the Company’s articles of incorporation. 

Attendance by videoconference will be deemed attendance in person. 

A director who appoints another director to attend a board meeting shall 

in each instance issue a proxy form stating the scope of authorization 

with respect to the reasons for convening the meeting. 

The proxy referred to in paragraph 2 may be the appointed proxy of only 

one person. 

Article VI. A board meeting shall be held at the premises and during the business 

hours of the Company, or at a place and time convenient for all directors 

to attend and suitable for holding board meetings. 

Article VII. Board meetings shall be convened and chaired by the chairperson of the 

board. However, with respect to the first meeting of each newly elected 

board of directors, it shall be called and chaired by the director that 

received votes representing the largest portion of voting rights at the 

shareholders’ meeting in which the directors were elected; if two or more 

directors are so entitled to convene the meeting, they shall select from 

among themselves one director to serve as chair. 

Where a meeting of the board of directors is called by a majority of 

directors on their own initiative, the directors shall choose one person by 

and from among themselves to chair the meeting. 

When the chairperson of the board is on leave or for any reason unable to 

exercise the powers of chairperson, the vice chairperson shall act in place 

of the chairperson; if there is no vice chairperson or the vice chairperson 

is also on leave or for any reason unable to exercise the powers of vice 

chairperson, the chairperson shall appoint one of the managing directors 

to act, or, if there are no managing directors, one of the directors shall be 

appointed to act as chair. If no such designation is made by the 

chairperson, the managing directors or directors shall select one person 

from among themselves to serve as chair. 
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Article VIII. When the Company’s board meeting is held, the designated unit 

responsible for the board meetings shall furnish the attending directors 

with relevant materials for ready reference. 

When the board meeting is held, the audit officer shall attend and report 

to the board of directors. As merited by the content of a proposal to be 

put forward at a board meeting, personnel from a relevant department or 

a subsidiary may be notified to attend the meeting as non-voting 

participants. When necessary, certified public accountants, attorneys, or 

other professionals retained by the Company may also be invited to 

attend the meeting and to make explanatory statements, provided that 

they shall leave the meeting when deliberation or voting takes place. 

The chairperson shall call the board meeting to order at the appointed 

meeting time and when more than one-half of all the directors are in 

attendance. 

If one-half of all the directors are not in attendance at the appointed 

meeting time, the chairperson may announce postponement of the 

meeting time, provided that no more than two such postponements may 

be made. If the quorum is still not met after two postponements, the 

chairperson shall reconvene the meeting in accordance with the 

procedures in Article 3, paragraph 2. 

The number of “all directors,” as used in the preceding paragraph and in 

Article 16, paragraph 2, subparagraph 2, shall be counted as the number 

of directors then actually in office. 

Article IX. Proceedings of a board meeting shall be recorded in their entirety in 

audio or video, and the recording shall be retained for a minimum of 5 

years. The record may be retained in electronic form. 

If any litigation arises with respect to a resolution of a board meeting 

before the end of the retention period of the preceding paragraph, the 

relevant audio or video record shall be retained until the conclusion of 

the litigation. 

Where a board meeting is held by videoconference, the audio or video 

documentation of the meeting constitutes part of the meeting minutes and 

shall be retained for the duration of the existence of the Company. 

Article X. Agenda items for regular board meetings of the Company shall include at 

least the following: 

I. Matters to be reported: 
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(I) Minutes of the last meeting and action taken. 

(II) Important financial and business matters. 

(III) Internal audit activities. 

(IV) Other important matters to be reported. 

II. Matters for discussion: 

(I) Items for continued discussion from the last meeting. 

(II) Items for discussion at this meeting. 

III. Extraordinary motions. 

Article XI. A board meeting shall follow the agenda given in the meeting notice. 

However, the agenda may be changed with the approval of a majority of 

directors in attendance at the board meeting. 

The chairperson may not declare the meeting closed without the approval 

of a majority of the directors in attendance at the meeting. 

At any time during the course of a board meeting, if the number of 

directors sitting at the meeting does not constitute a majority of the 

attending directors, then upon the motion by a director sitting at the 

meeting, the chairperson shall declare a suspension of the meeting, in 

which case Article 8, paragraph 3 shall apply mutatis mutandis. 

Article XII. The matters listed below shall be raised for discussion at a board meeting 

of the Company: 

I. The Company’s business plan. 

II. Annual and semi-annual financial reports, with the exception of 

semi-annual financial reports that are not required under relevant 

laws and regulations to be audited and attested by certified public 

accountants. 

III. Adoption or amendment of an internal control system pursuant to 

Article 14-1 of the Securities and Exchange Act and assessment of 

the effectiveness of the internal control system. 

IV. Adoption or amendment, pursuant to Article 36-1 of the Securities 

and Exchange Act, of any handling procedures for material 

financial or business transactions, such as the acquisition or 

disposal of assets, derivatives trading, loans of funds to others, and 

endorsements or guarantees for others. 

V. The offering, issuance, or private placement of equity-type 

securities. 
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VI. The appointment or discharge of a financial, accounting, or internal 

audit officer. 

VII. A donation to a related party or a major donation to a non-related 

party, provided that a public-interest donation of disaster relief that 

is made for a major natural disaster may be submitted to the 

following board of directors meeting for retroactive recognition. 

VIII. Any matter that, under Article 14-3 of the Securities and Exchange 

Act or any other law, regulation, or the articles of incorporation, 

must be approved by resolution at a shareholders’ meeting or board 

meeting, or any material matter as may be prescribed by the 

competent authority. 

The term “related party” in subparagraph 7 of the preceding paragraph 

means a related party as defined in the Regulations Governing the 

Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers. The term “major 

donation to a non-related party” means an individual donation, or 

cumulative donations within a 1-year period to a single recipient, at an 

amount of NTD100 million or more, or at an amount equal to or greater 

than 1 percent of net operating revenue or 5 percent of paid-in capital as 

stated in the CPA-attested financial report for the most recent year. 

The term “within a 1-year period” in the preceding paragraph means a 

period of 1 year calculated retroactively from the date on which the 

current board of directors meeting is convened. Amounts already 

submitted to and passed by a resolution of the board are exempted from 

inclusion in the calculation. 

At least one independent director of the Company shall attend the 

meeting in person. With respect to the matters which must be approved 

by resolutions at a board meeting as provided in the first paragraph, all 

independent directors shall attend the meeting. Where an independent 

director is unable to attend the meeting, that independent director shall 

appoint another independent director to attend the meeting as proxy. If an 

independent director objects to or expresses reservations about such a 

matter, it shall be recorded in the board meeting minutes; if an 

independent director intends to express an objection or reservation but is 

unable to attend the meeting in person, then unless there is a legitimate 

reason to do otherwise, that director shall issue a written opinion in 

advance, which shall be recorded in the board meeting minutes. 
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Article XIII. When the chairperson at a board meeting is of the opinion that a proposal 

has been discussed sufficiently to put it to a vote, the chairperson may 

announce the discussion closed and call a vote. 

When a proposal comes to a vote at a board meeting, if no attending 

director voices an objection following an inquiry by the chairperson, the 

proposal will be deemed approved. If there is an objection following an 

inquiry by the chairperson, the proposal shall be brought to a vote. 

One voting method for proposals at a board meeting shall be selected by 

the chairperson from among those below, provided that when an 

attending director has an objection, the chairperson shall seek the opinion 

of the majority to make a decision: 

I. A show of hands. 

II. A roll call vote. 

III. A vote by ballot. 

IV. A vote by a method selected at the Company’s discretion. 

“Attending directors” does not include directors that shall not exercise 

voting rights pursuant to Article 15, paragraph 1. 

Article XIV. Except where otherwise provided by the Securities and Exchange Act 

and the Company Act, the passage of a proposal at a board meeting shall 

require the approval of a majority of the directors in attendance at a board 

of directors meeting attended by a majority of all directors. 

When there is an amendment or alternative to a proposal, the chairperson 

shall present the amended or alternative proposal together with the 

original proposal and decide the order in which they will be put to a vote. 

If any one among them is passed, the other proposals shall then be 

deemed rejected, and no further voting on them shall be required. 

If a vote on a proposal requires monitoring and counting personnel, the 

chair shall appoint such personnel, providing that all monitoring 

personnel shall be directors. 

Voting results shall be made known on-site immediately and recorded in 

writing. 

Article XV. If a director or a juristic person that the director represents is an 

interested party in relation to an agenda item, the director shall state the 

important aspects of the interested party relationship at the respective 

meeting. When the relationship is likely to prejudice the interest of the 

Company, that director may not participate in discussion or voting on that 
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agenda item and shall recuse himself or herself from the discussion or the 

voting on the item, and may not exercise voting rights as proxy for 

another director. 

Where the spouse, a blood relative within the second degree of kinship of 

a director, or any company which has a controlling or subordinate 

relation with a director has interests in the matters under discussion in the 

meeting of the preceding paragraph, such director shall be deemed to 

have a personal interest in the matter. 

Article 206, paragraph 4 of the Company Act applies to resolutions of 

board of directors meetings when a director is prohibited by the 

preceding two paragraphs from exercising voting rights. 

Article XVI. Discussions at a board meeting shall be recorded in the meeting minutes, 

and the minutes shall fully and accurately state the matters listed below: 

I. Session (or year), time, and place of meeting. 

II. Name of the meeting chairperson. 

III. Attendance of directors at the meeting, specifying the names and 

number of members present, excused, and absent. 

IV. Names and titles of those attending the meeting as nonvoting 

participants. 

V. Name of minutes taker. 

VI. Matters reported on. 

VII. Agenda items: the method of resolution and the result for each 

proposal; a summary of the comments made by directors, 

supervisors, experts, or other persons; the name of any director that 

is an interested party as referred to in paragraph 1 of the preceding 

article, an explanation of the important aspects of the relationship 

of interest, the reasons why the director was required or not 

required to enter recusal, and the status of their recusal; opinions 

expressing objections or reservations at the meeting that were 

included in records or stated in writing; and any opinion issued in 

writing by an independent director pursuant to Article 12, 

paragraph 4. 

VIII. Extraordinary motions: The name of the mover, the method of 

resolution and the result, a summary of the comments of any 

director, supervisor, expert, or other person; the name of any 

director that is an interested party as referred to in paragraph 1 of 

the preceding article, an explanation of the important aspects of the 
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relationship of interest, the reasons why the director was required 

or not required to enter recusal, and the status of their recusal; and 

their objections or reservations and any recorded or written 

statements. 

IX. Other matters required to be recorded. 

The occurrence of any of the following circumstances, with respect to a 

resolution passed at a board meeting, shall be stated in the meeting 

minutes and shall be publicly announced and filed on the website of the 

Market Observation Post System designated by the Financial Supervisory 

Commission, Executive Yuan, within 2 days from the date of the 

meeting: 

The attendance book forms a part of the minutes for each board of 

directors meeting and shall be well preserved during the existence of the 

Company. 

The minutes of a board of directors meeting shall bear the signature or 

seal of both the meeting chairperson and the minutes taker; a copy of the 

minutes shall be distributed to each director and supervisor within 20 

days after the meeting and well preserved as important company records 

during the existence of the company. 

The meeting minutes of paragraph 1 may be prepared and distributed in 

electronic form. 

Article XVII. With the exception of matters required to be discussed at a board meeting 

under Article 12, paragraph 1, when the board of directors appoints a 

party to exercise the powers of the board in accordance with applicable 

laws and regulations or the Company’s articles of incorporation, the 

levels of such delegation and the content or matters it covers shall be 

definite and specific, and carried out in accordance with the Company’s 

Regulations of Delegation for Duties 

Article XVIII. These Rules of Procedure shall be adopted by the approval of meeting of 

the board of directors and shall be reported to the shareholders’ meeting. 
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APCB INC. 

Shareholdings of All Directors  

Title Name Shareholding Recorded in the 
Shareholder List as of the Book 

Closure Date 

Shareholding 
Ratio

Chairman Tsao, Yueh-Hsia 9,924,708 6.21

Director Lai, Chin-TSAI 10,299,803 6.44

Director Tai, Shui-Chuan 420,231 0.26

Independent 
director 

Tsai, Li-Yun 0 

Independent 
director 

Chang, Hui  0 

Independent 
director 

Hung, Ju-Mei 0 

Total shares held by directors 20,644,742 12.91% 

Note: I. There are currently three independent directors on the board of 

directors of the Company. Hence, according to “Rules and Review 

Procedures for Director and Supervisor Share Ownership Ratios at 

Public Companies,” the shareholdings of independent directors 

elected by a public company shall not be counted in the total; the 

statutory share ownership figures calculated for all directors other 

than the independent directors shall be decreased by 20 percent. 

II. As of the book closure date for the shareholders’ meeting, April 16, 

2023, the Company has issued 159,899,311 shares. According to 

“Rules and Review Procedures for Director and Supervisor Share 

Ownership Ratios at Public Companies,” the statutory minimum 

number of shares required to be held by all directors is 9,593,958 

shares. 

III.  The independent director Sun, Yuan-Jun resigned on December 15, 

2022. 

Appendix VI 

-58-



Impact of Issuance of Stock Dividends on Business Performance, 
Earnings per Shares, and Return of Equity 

Year   
  Items 

2023 
(Pro-forma) 

Beginning paid-in capital $1,598,993,110 

Stock dividend 
and cash 

dividend issued 
this year 

Cash dividend per share $0.5 

Stock dividend per share for capital increase from 
retained earnings 

Stock dividend per share for capital increase from 
capital reserve 

Change in 
business 

performance 

Operating profit  

Year-on-year increase/decrease ratio of operating profit 

Net profit after tax  

Year-on-year increase/decrease (%) of net profit after 
tax 

Earnings per share 

Year-on-year increase/decrease of earnings per share 

Average annual ROE ratio (reciprocal of average 
annual P/E ratio) 

Pro forma 
earnings per 
share and its 

P/E ratio 

In case that cash 
dividends would be paid 
in lieu of stock dividend 
by a Capitalization of 
retained earnings 

Pro forma earnings per share 

Pro forma average return 
over investment (annualized) 

In case that there would 
be no stock dividend 
appropriated from a 
capitalization of capital 
reserve 

Pro forma earnings per share 

Pro forma average return 
over investment (annualized) 

In case that there would 
be no stock dividend 
appropriated from a 
capitalization of capital 
reserve, and cash 
dividends would be paid 
in lieu of stock 
dividends by a 
capitalization of retained 
earnings 

Pro forma earnings per share 

Pro forma average return 
over investment (annualized) 

Note 1: The dividend distribution for the year is calculated on the basis of 159,899,311 
outstanding shares of the Company as of March 2023. 

2: The Company did not make financial forecast for 2023 publicly; therefore, 
there is no need to disclose the information of the 2023 forecast. 

Appendix VII 
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